
BOROUGH OF BARROW-IN-FURNESS

PLANNING COMMITTEE

Meeting: Tuesday, 26th November, 2019
   at 2.30 pm (Drawing Room)

Site Visits

There are no site visits.

A G E N D A
PART ONE

1.  Urgent Items

To note any items which the Chairman considers to be of an urgent 
nature. 

2.  Delegations

To receive notice from Members who may wish to move any 
delegated matter non-delegated and which will be decided by a 
majority of Members present and voting at the meeting.

3.  Admission of Public and Press

To consider whether the public and press should be excluded from 
the meeting during consideration of any of the items on the agenda.

4.  Declarations of Interest

To receive declarations by Members and/or co-optees of interests in 
respect of items on this Agenda. 

Members are reminded that, in accordance with the revised Code of 
Conduct, they are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary 
interests or other registrable interests which have not already been 
declared in the Council’s Register of Interests.  (It is a criminal 
offence not to declare a disclosable pecuniary interest either in the 
Register or at the meeting).

Members may however, also decide, in the interests of clarity and 
transparency, to declare at this point in the meeting, any such 
disclosable pecuniary interests which they have already declared in 
the Register,  as well as any other registrable or other interests.  



5.  Apologies for Absence/Attendance of Substitute Members.  

6.  Confirmation of Minutes

To confirm the Minutes of the meeting held on 29th October, 2019.

5 - 16

7.  Delegated Approvals - For Information (Booklet attached)  17 - 30

FOR DECISION 

(D) 8.  Planning Applications (Booklet attached). 
 

31 - 114

(D) 9.  Uploading of Local Validation Criteria 
 

115 - 124

(D) 10.  Enforcement Update Report 
 

125 - 128

NOTE (D) – Delegated
(R) – For Referral to Council

INVITATIONS TO SPEAK TO THE COMMITTEE (2.30p.m.)

Membership of Committee

Councillors C. Thomson (Chairman)
M. A. Thomson (Vice-Chair) 
Assouad
Burley
D. Edwards
Gawne
Hall
Husband
McEwan
Mooney
Nott
Seward

For queries regarding this agenda, please contact:

Paula Westwood
Democratic Services Officer 
(Member Support)
01229 876322
pwestwood@barrowbc.gov.uk

Published: Monday 18th November, 2019



PLANNING COMMITTEE

Meeting: Tuesday 29th October, 2019
at 2.30 pm. (Drawing Room)

PRESENT:- Councillors C. Thomson (Chair), M. A. Thomson (Vice-Chair), Assouad, 
Blezard, Burley, D. Edwards, Gawne, Husband, McEwan, McLeavy and Mooney.

Officers Present:- Jason Hipkiss (Development Services Manager - Planning), 
Charles Wilton (Principal Planning Officer), Maureen Smith (Principal Planning 
Officer), Debbie Storr (Principal Legal Officer), Paula Westwood (Democratic 
Services Officer - Member Support) and Sandra Kemsley (Democratic Services 
Officer).

67 – Declarations of Interest

Councillors Gawne and McEwan declared an interest in any matter relating to 
Cumbria County Council as they were Members of that Council.  

Councillors Husband, McEwan and Thomson requested that it be noted that 
although they had declared an interest in Planning Application No. 2019/0483 – 
Askam Windcluster, Far Old Park Farm, Broughton Road, Dalton-in-Furness at the 
meeting on 10th September, 2019 when the application had been considered, they 
had since taken legal advice and as the objector was not a close friend, it had not 
been necessary for them to leave the meeting as the interest was non-pecuniary.  
They did not leave the meeting during consideration of the same matter today which 
had been deferred and presented as a topic report.

68 – Apologies for Absence/Attendance of Substitute Members

Apologies for absence had been received from Councillors Hall, Nott and Seward. 

Councillors Blezard and McLeavy had attended as substitutes for Councillors Nott 
and Hall respectively for this meeting only.

69 – Minutes

The Minutes of the meeting held on 1st October, 2019 were taken as read and 
confirmed.

70 – 2019/0483 Submission by Windcluster to modify the Unilateral 
Undertaking dated 13th January, 2003 (Section 106) to permit the 
continued operation of the Wind Farm for a further 10 years expiring 
August 2029

The Development Services Manager (Planning and Enforcement) reported that 
consideration of this application had been considered at the meeting on 10th 
September, 2019 (Minute No. 52 Refers).  At that meeting, Members had deferred 
making a decision to enable further assessment of the noise environment.  He 
reported that there appeared to have been some confusion as to the manner in 

Page 3

Agenda Item 6



which the Authority should have processed the submission.  In the report the Case 
Officer advised that:-

“This application seeks to amend a 106 obligation, a relatively rare form of 
submission, but which have been as a result of several relatively recent legislative 
amendments as government seeks to make the Planning system more flexible”

Those recent changes (Section 106A of the Act) had enabled older s106 agreements 
to be revisited to ascertain if they were still relevant.  The test was whether it 
continued to serve a useful purpose, (importantly, the Courts had established that 
this was not just a planning purpose) or whether it could continue to serve that 
purpose in a modified form.  Whilst this exercise was broader than a planning 
application, and did not bring in the full range of planning considerations, it was 
reasonable that a Planning Authority should have some regard to local policies in 
reaching its conclusion.  This was where the Development Services Manager 
believed that the confusion had arisen.

Following the Committee’s resolution, legal opinion had been sought to ensure that 
the correct approach was adopted in determining the application.  The following had 
been received:-

The legislation on amending 106 obligations states as follows:

1. S.106A of the 1990 Act so far as relevant states:

“(6) Where an application is made to an authority under subsection (3), the authority 
may determine—

(a) that the planning obligation shall continue to have effect without modification;

(b) if the obligation no longer serves a useful purpose, that it shall be discharged; or

(c) if the obligation continues to serve a useful purpose, but would serve that 
purpose equally well if it had effect subject to the modifications specified in the 
application, that it shall have effect subject to those modifications.”

The legal opinion drew upon several legal precedents from cases elsewhere and 
advised as follows:-

‘Noise may be a consideration to which the Council should have regard when 
determining the application.  However, it is important that the Council do not 
approach the determination of the application as if it were a s.73 application [a 
variation of condition application] because it is not. Instead the Council must 
approach the application by considering the following four questions, the answers to 
which will indicate whether noise is a factor to have regard to:

a. what is the current obligation?
b. what purpose does it fulfil?
c. is it a useful purpose?

Page 4

Agenda Item 6



d. if so, would the obligation serve that purpose equally well if it had effect subject to 
the proposed modifications?’

Applying that approach to the submission:

The legal opinion confirmed that the legislation requires that this should not be dealt 
with in the same manner as a planning application.  For example there was no 
statutory requirement for publicity or consultation, as it is considered that the 
exercise is one of a legal rather than a Planning process.

The purpose of the original undertaking was to secure compliance with the planning 
conditions attached to the original planning permission for the wind turbines.  Those 
conditions controlled various aspects of the development.  This included obligation 
no 1 which limited the life of the development to 20 years thereafter the turbines had 
to be removed and the land reinstated.

It was only this one obligation to which the application related to.  The purpose of the 
original condition was to ensure that the turbines did not remain beyond their (then 
anticipated) operational life.  Were the 106 to be modified as applied for, i.e. 
extending the life for a further 10 years, it would serve that purpose equally well.  
This was because the applicant had shown that the development was capable of 
operating for that longer period of time.  The application did not seek to alter the 106 
obligation with respect to noise limits (obligation no 3).  Therefore it follows that were 
the s106 to be modified it would continue to serve that purpose equally well 
compared to the original s106, as the noise requirements remain unchanged.

Based upon the Council’s legal opinion that has been obtained, consideration of the 
submission by this Committee needed to be limited to whether the agreement 
fulfilled a “useful purpose” and if it did whether the modified agreement would fulfil 
that useful purpose “equally well”.

The focus of the application was extending the life of the development for a further 
10 years.  In this respect, the applicant had stated the ability to achieve that through 
suitable maintenance regimes of its equipment thus ensuring the continued 
generation of “green” energy beyond the previous 20 year lifetime.

Although this submission was not a planning application, the applicant had the right 
of appeal against any refusal.  In this respect it would be unlikely that a suitable 
defence of a refusal could be mounted, taking into account the evidence submitted 
and the legal advice obtained.

Residents had objected on the basis of noise from the turbines.  Any consideration of 
noise issues should be outwith of the current determination.  They should not play 
any part in the consideration of the submission, which was solely to extend the 
operational life of the Wind Farm.

Members and Residents could be assured that compliance with the noise condition 
could be checked as a separate exercise and mitigation or enforcement actions 
taken through the Planning or other environmental legislation as appropriate.  
Responses from the Borough Public Protection Officers indicated that the wind farm 

Page 5

Agenda Item 6



operator had engaged diligently with them to identify and mitigate any noise issues, 
and had invested in updated software to control the turbines when complaints had 
been received.

RESOLVED:-  To agree that the Section 106 obligation be modified in accordance 
with the submission so that decommissioning occurs no later than August 2029.

71 – Appeal Decision 79 Romney Park, Dalton-in-Furness

The Planning Manager reported on an Appeal Decision in respect of an application 
for a two storey side extension to a house at 79 Romney Park, Dalton-in-Furness.

As the adjacent neighbouring property was a bungalow and the main issues raised 
had been in relation to the impact upon the living conditions of those occupiers.  
Central to that was the bedroom window in the gable of the bungalow to which sun 
and daylighting would be adversely affected by the initial design.  It had been noted 
that the Agent had tried to redesign the extension to overcome the objection.  A 
simple peer review of the lighting assessment highlighted that the document did not 
follow established industry standards and was insufficient to draw a positive 
conclusion from.

The Committee had upheld the Officer recommendation, and the application had 
been refused on the basis of the impact upon the living conditions of occupiers of the 
adjacent neighbour.  Planning permission had been refused due to conflict with 
(then) emerging policy H16 and with NPPF paragraph 127. Policy H16 sought to 
avoid schemes that would have an overbearing impact or reduce amenities by 
reducing natural lighting. The national framework encourages development that 
promotes high standards of amenity.  

The Inspector had considered both sides of the case and found conflict with Local 
Plan policy H16 and Chapter 12 of the NPPF and agreed that the Authority was 
correct in refusing consent for the reasons stated. 

The Planning Manager advised that a secondary action to award costs against the 
Authority, on the grounds of unreasonable behaviour during the Committee meeting 
and not having sufficient policy justification to refuse the proposal, had also been 
dismissed.  The Inspector recognised that it was common practise at Committee to 
limit presenters to a fixed period to put their case across, and found that the 
emerging policies had sufficient weight to substantiate the refusal. 

RESOLVED:- To note the information.

Town and Country Planning Acts

72 – Delegated Decisions

The Assistant Director - Regeneration and Built Environment submitted for 
information details of planning applications in this report which he had determined 
under delegated authority (Minute No. 254, Planning Committee, 3rd September, 
2002, confirmed by Council 24th September, 2002).  The decisions are reported for 

Page 6

Agenda Item 6



your information.  The plans recommended for approval under the Town and Country 
Planning Acts will be subject to the standard conditions referred to in Minute No. 208 
(April 1971) of the Plans Sub-Committee, Barrow-in-Furness, County Borough 
Council, in addition to any conditions indicated hereunder.  Applications with a (P) 
beside the applicant’s name denotes those applications that were reported to the 
Planning Panel.

RESOLVED:- (i) To note the decisions made under the Town and Country Planning 
Act 1990 (as amended) as follows:-

2019/0570 Removal of existing detached garage and replacement with a 
detached garage at another location within the curtilage at 23 
Hawkshead Gardens, Barrow-in-Furness.

2019/0610 Erection of single storey pitched roof side and part rear kitchen/dining 
extension at 10 Keswick Avenue, Barrow-in-Furness.

2019/0612 Single storey flat roof extension to side and rear of property to provide 
accessible bedroom and wet room. Access ramp to gable entrance at 
7 Pypers Croft, Barrow-in-Furness.

2019/0615 Erection of replacement pitched roof garage at 14 Maylands Avenue, 
Barrow-in-Furness.

2019/0629 Non Material Amendment following a grant of planning permission 
2019/0465 (Erection of double storey side/rear extension forming 
utility room at ground floor level, bedroom 4, dressing room and en-
suite at first floor level) to allow for an increase in the width of the 
extension by 300mm towards the boundary at 13 Winchester Street, 
Barrow-in-Furness.

2019/0634 Siting of portacabin for use as a kite surfing teaching classroom and 
store and associated re-siting of existing steel container at Earnse 
Bay Car Park, West Shore Road, Barrow-in-Furness.

2019/0646 Single storey side extension forming store room and sun room at 4 
Estuary Park, Askam-in-Furness.

2019/0677 Application for a Certificate of Lawfulness for an Existing Use or 
Development (CLEUD) for building work (erection of a rear boundary 
wall to form an enclosed yard) without complying with Condition No. 3 
(Private parking area to rear of the property) of planning permission 
2005/0620) at Birchwood, Dominion Street, Barrow-in-Furness.

2019/0510 Application for approval of details reserved by Condition No. 4 
(external lighting) and No. 5 (floor slab level) of planning permission 
2018/0372 (Erection of a steel framed agricultural building for the 
storage of livestock feeds, supplies and machinery) at Stank Lane, 
Stank.

Page 7

Agenda Item 6



2019/0521 Application for a variation of Condition No. 6 of planning permission 
2017/0628 (Construction of temporary Heliport) in order to modify the 
‘Bird Mitigation and Monitoring Plan’ at Sandscale Park Helipad, 
Sandscale Park, Barrow-in-Furness.

2019/0599 Application for the variation of Condition No. 2 (garage space to be 
reserved for garage use for private vehicles) of planning permission 
1990/0770 (Revised layout to allow 24 semi detached houses and 
one detached house at land off Yarlside Road) to allow for the garage 
to be converted into extra kitchen and dining space at 20 Grey Friar 
Close, Barrow-in-Furness.

2019/0608 Approval of details reserved by Condition No. 3 (finished floor levels 
Plots 15-19), No. 8 (street lighting details), No. 9 (timescale for 
implementing landscaping and bio-diversity measures), and No. 12 
(Phase of the development) for planning permission 2019/0216 
(erection of 61 houses) on land at Solway Drive, Barrow-in-Furness.

2019/0618 Rear single storey flat roofed dining room extension and provision of 
raised decking (650mm high) to enable access to proposed extension 
at 80 Redoak Avenue, Barrow-in-Furness.

2019/0573 Single storey front and rear extensions to provide additional en-suite 
bedrooms for residents and associated internal alterations. Alterations 
to existing driveway/forecourt to create turning area and parking and 2 
Hawcoat Lane, Barrow-in-Furness.

2019/0516 Provision of a dormer window to south elevation at 13 Marine Terrace, 
Roa Island, Barrow-in-Furness.

2019/0508 Provision of condenser unit to rear of (original) building at Alfred 
Barrow Health Centre, Duke Street, Barrow-in-Furness.

2019/0568 Installation of a new package treatment plant to replace an old septic 
tank on land adjacent to Dunnerholme Cottages, Dunnerholme, 
Askam-in-Furness.

2019/0588 Application for a non-material amendment following rant of planning 
permission 2017/0282 (Application for approval of reserved matters 
following outline approval of planning permission 2015/0832) to allow 
for the redesign of first and second floor windows to front elevation at 
48 Abbey Road, Barrow-in-Furness.

2019/0614 Rear single storey extension forming kitchen, dining and living area at 
19 Hawcoat Lane, Barrow-in-Furness.

2019/0548 Listed Building Consent for the provision of condenser unit to rear of 
(original) building at Alfred Barrow Health Centre, Duke Street, 
Barrow-in-Furness.

Page 8

Agenda Item 6



2019/0630 Single storey rear extension forming a sun room and loft conversion 
forming third bedroom with front and rear velux windows, 
(Resubmission of planning application 2019/0292 to a revised 
scheme) at 8 Portland Crescent, Barrow-in-Furness.

The following application was a County Matter:-

2019/9004 Proposed infill to porch in north east corner to form new meeting room 
inclusive of window and fire escape door; proposed alteration of 
existing window to provide new escape door set; change of front sign; 
general internal and external decorative updates; no change of 
present use (County Matter) at Ormsgill Family Centre, Millstone 
Avenue, Barrow-in-Furness.

The following applications had been refused:-

2019/0506 Application for works to trees subject of Tree Preservation Order 2003 
No. 1 for the felling of T1 (Sycamore), T2 (Cherry) and T3 (Cherry) on 
land adjacent to 17 Goose Green, Dalton-in-Furness.

2019/0558 Application for the erection of a detached garage at Plot 5 (No. 10 
Rock Lea Close) at 10 Rock Lea Close, Barrow-in-Furness.

(ii) To note the decisions made under the Building Act 1984/The Building 
Regulations 2010 as submitted by the Principal Building Control Surveyor.

Town and Country Planning Acts

The Planning Manager reported on the following planning applications:-

73 – 11 Sun Street, Ireleth, Askam-in-Furness

From Mr and Mrs Peak in respect of the installation of a raised patio to adjacent 
opening to lounge at 11 Sun Street, Ireleth, Askam-in-Furness as shown on plan 
number 2019/0540.

Representations received and the results of consultations were reported.

RESOLVED:- It was unanimously agreed that planning permission be granted 
subject to the Standard Duration Limit and the following conditions:-

1. The development must be begun not later than the expiration of three 
years beginning with the date of this permission. 

Reason 

Required to be imposed pursuant to Section 91 of the Town and Country 
Planning Act 1990, as amended by Section 51 of the Planning & 
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004. 

Page 9

Agenda Item 6



Compliance with Approved Plans 

2.   The development shall be carried out and completed in all respects in 
accordance with the application dated 12/07/19 and the hereby approved 
documents defined by this permission as listed below, except where 
varied by conditions attached to this consent. Drawing No. 548/06. 

Reason

To ensure that the development is carried out only as indicated on the 
drawings approved by the Planning Authority.

74 – Street Record, Hayeswater Drive, Dalton-in-Furness

From M T Woods & Sons in respect of the removal of Condition No. 16 (Footpath 
Link to Hollygate Road) of planning permission 2016/0126 at Street Record, 
Hayeswater Drive, Dalton-in-Furness as shown on plan number 2019/0594.

The results of consultations were reported.

RESOLVED:- It was unanimously agreed that the application be approved and 
planning permission be varied with the omission of Condition No. 16.

75 – Chapel Hills Smallholding, Oak Lea Road, Barrow-in-Furness

From Mr J. Mark in respect of the application for an extension to agricultural building 
to provide welfare facilities and storage at Chapel Hills Smallholding, Oak Lea Road, 
Barrow-in-Furness as shown on plan number 2019/0566.

Consideration of this application had been deferred at the last meeting on 1st 
October, 2019 (Minute No. 65 refers) to allow the applicant the opportunity to make 
representations to the Committee.

Representations received and the results of consultations were reported.

An Objector attended the meeting and made representations to the Committee.

The Committee had undertaken a site visit on 1st October, 2019.

RESOLVED:- It was unanimously agreed that planning permission be granted 
subject to the Standard Duration Limit and the following conditions:-

1. The development must be begun not later than the expiration of three 
years beginning with the date of this permission.

Reason

Required to be imposed pursuant to Section 91 of the Town and Country 
Planning Act 1990, as amended by Section 51 of the Planning & 
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

Page 10

Agenda Item 6



Compliance with Approved Plans

2. The development shall be carried out and completed in all respects in 
accordance with the application dated 26/07/19 and the hereby approved 
documents defined by this permission as listed below, except where 
varied by conditions attached to this consent:

WOL 01 rev A

Reason

To ensure that the development is carried out only as indicated on the 
drawings approved by the Planning Authority.

Pre-commencement Conditions

No conditions of this type.

During Building Works

3. The exterior of the cladding shall be the shade of dark green defined by 
BS4800 12B29 and which shall be incorporated into the material during its 
manufacture.

Reason

To ensure the development is visually sensitive to its rural context and to 
ensure the colour is permanent as opposed to a more temporary painted 
finish.

Before Occupation

4. Prior to any beneficial use of the extension hereby approved, occupation 
of the static caravan located to the east of the building shall cease and the 
caravan removed from the site.

Reason

The presence of the caravan, which does not benefit from any formal 
permission, results in landscape harm. It should no longer be required 
following the construction of the extension.

Operational Conditions

5. The extension hereby approved must only be used for the day to day staff 
welfare requirements associated with the farming operation, such as lunch 
and rest breaks.  Any limited use for overnight/sleeping accommodation 
must only be in connection with seasonal farming operations which 

Page 11

Agenda Item 6



require the continuous presence of a worker, e.g. during lambing season, 
and must not be used for permanent residential occupation.

Reason

No evidence or justification has been provided to demonstrate the need 
for an agricultural workers dwelling.

6. Where the use of the extension for the purposes of agriculture within the 
unit permanently ceases within 10 years of the date that it is substantially 
completed, and planning permission has not been granted for an 
alternative use, then it shall be removed from the site, and the land 
reinstated in accordance with a scheme that shall be subject to prior 
written agreement with the Planning Authority, within 6 months of the date 
the agricultural use permanently ceases.

Reason

To ensure the building is removed if it is no longer required for the 
purposes of agriculture on the holding in recognition of the intrinsic 
character and beauty of the countryside.

76 – Over-spill Car Park to rear of Clarkes Arms, Rampside, Barrow-in-Furness

From Mr A. Davies in respect of the erection of a detached 2 storey three bedroom 
dwelling at Over-spill car park to rear of Clarkes Arms, Rampside, Barrow-in-Furness 
as shown on plan number 2019/0356.

Consideration of this application had been deferred at the meeting on 10th 
September, 2019 (Minute No. 53 refers) to allow the Council to obtain its own 
arborical report in respect of the tree proposed to be removed which was positioned 
to the north east of the site, identified as Category U and to obtain an improved 
landscaping scheme.

Representations received and the results of consultations were reported.

The Committee had undertaken a site visit on 1st October, 2019.

RESOLVED:- It was unanimously agreed that planning permission be granted 
subject to the Standard Duration Limit and the following conditions:-

Compliance with Approved Plans

2. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in all respects in 
accordance with the application dated as valid on 28/05/2019 and the 
hereby approved documents defined by this permission as listed below, 
except where varied by a condition attached to this consent:

164, 164.01, 164.02 rev. A, 164.03 rev. A, 164.04 rev. C, 164.05
Design and Access Statement received 7.5.19.

Page 12

Agenda Item 6



Arboricultural Report, Tree Survey and Arboricultural Impact Assessment 
dated 10.4.19.
Preliminary Ecological Assessment dated 20.5.19 including Appendix 1 - 
Bat Report and Appendix 2 - Reptile Report.
Phase 1 Desk Study dated August 2019 prepared by Meridian 
Geoscience, in particular the recommendations included in paragraphs 
4.2.2 and 4.2.3 of the report.

Reason

To ensure that the development is carried out only as indicated on the 
drawings approved by the Planning Authority.

3. Unless the Planning Authority gives prior written agreement that it is 
impractical to do so, all drainage must be on the separate system with all 
foul drainage connected to the foul sewers and only uncontaminated 
surface water connected to the surface water system.

Reason

In order to ensure that the site is adequately drained and in order to 
control the potential for pollution of the water environment.

Pre-commencement Conditions

4. Prior to the commencement of any development, the following measures 
must be met to safeguard the trees that are present on site/subject to 
Tree Preservation Order 1998 No. 5;

a)  Fencing in accordance with the Arboricultural Impact Assessment 
dated 10.4.19 must be erected around each tree or group of trees.

b) No excavations, site works, trenches, channels, pipes, services, 
temporary buildings used in connection with the development or areas 
for the deposit of soil or waste or for storage of construction materials, 
equipment or fuel shall be sited within either the crown spread of any 
tree or within the root protection area of the trees as shown on the 
approved plans without the prior express consent of the Planning 
Authority.

c)  No burning of any materials shall take place within 6 metres of any tree 
or tree groups to be retained without the prior express consent.

Reason

In order to ensure that damage does not occur to the trees during building 
or engineering operations.

Page 13

Agenda Item 6



Operational Conditions

5. All planting, seeding or turfing comprised in the approved details of 
landscaping shall be carried out in the first planting and seeding seasons 
following beneficial occupation of any part of the development, or in 
accordance with the phasing of the scheme as agreed in writing with the 
Planning Authority. Any trees or plants which within a period of five years 
from the completion of the development die, are removed, or become 
seriously damaged or diseased, shall be replaced by the landowner in the 
next planting season with others of a similar size and species, unless the 
Planning Authority gives prior written consent to any variation.

Reason

In the interests of the visual amenities of the area.

6. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town & Country Planning (General 
Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 (as amended) (or of any 
Order revoking and re-enacting that Order with or without modifications) 
nothing in Article 3 or Schedule 2 to that Order, shall operate so as to 
permit within the area subject of this permission any development referred 
to in Part 1, Classes A and B, and no such development shall be carried 
out at any time within that area without the prior express grant of 
permission by the Planning Authority.

Reason

Due to the relationship between the proposed development and its 
neighbour, there is potential for overlooking.

The meeting closed at 3.02 pm.

Page 14

Agenda Item 6



   

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 
 
 
 
 

Delegated Decisions made between 
 
 

 
and 

 
 
 
 
 

For Information 
 

 
 
Ladies and Gentlemen, 
 
Town & Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended) 
Planning (Listed buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 (as amended) 
Town & Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (England) Order 
2015 (as amended) 
Town and County Planning (Control of Advertisements) (England) Regulations 2007. 
 
The Planning applications in this report have been determined by the Development 
Services Manager (Planning) under delegated authority (Minute No. 107, Executive 
Committee, 7th February 2018, confirmed by Council 1st March 2018 (Minute No. 63). 
The decisions are reported for your information. 
 

 

 

 

Assistant Director of Regeneration and Built Environment 

26/11/2019

15/10/2019

12/11/2019

Page 15

Agenda Item 7



   

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Reference:
B21/2019/0607

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
15/10/2019

Location:
27 Water Garth Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria LA14
3YL

Proposal:
Erection of a two storey side extension forming
additional utility, extended dining room and one
additional bedroom (Resubmission to a revised
scheme)

Ward:
Walney South
Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Barry Jesson

Reference:
B18/2019/0636

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
18/10/2019

Location:
Barn at Cliffways Tippins Lane Ireleth Askam-in-
Furness Cumbria LA16 7EY

Proposal:
Barn Conversion to a residential dwelling

Ward:
Dalton North
Ward

Parish:
Askam and
Ireleth Parish
Council

Case Officer:
Barry Jesson

Reference:
B21/2019/0641

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
29/10/2019

Location:
5 Silecroft Gardens, Barrow-in-Furness, Cumbria
LA14 3SP

Proposal:
Single storey side extension forming extended
living room and bedroom.

Ward:
Walney North
Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Jennifer
Dickinson

Reference:
B23/2019/0662

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
11/11/2019

Location:
54 Market Street Dalton-in-Furness Cumbria LA15
8AA

Proposal:
Listed Building Consent for internal alterations to
form open plan office/sales area to front of
property with reconfigured brew area, store room
and W.C.

Ward:
Dalton South
Ward

Parish:
Dalton Town
with Newton
Parish Council

Case Officer:
Barry Jesson

Page 16

Agenda Item 7



   

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Reference:
B20/2019/0687

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
05/11/2019

Location:
109 Ramsden Street, Barrow-in-Furness, Cumbria,
LA14 2BW

Proposal:
Change of use from a Taxi Office (Ground Floor)
with residential accommodation above to single
residential accommodation in conjunction with
upper floors.

Ward:
Central Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Maureen Smith

Reference:
BPA4/2019/06
96

Decision:
APPROVED

Decision Date:
01/11/2019

Location:
Oak Lea Farm Oak Lea Road Barrow-in-Furness
Cumbria LA14 4QW

Proposal:
Application for prior notification of agricultural or
forestry development - proposed general purpose
agricultural building.

Ward:
Hawcoat Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Barry Jesson

Reference:
B28/2019/9200

Decision:
COMMSENT

Decision Date:
29/10/2019

Location:
Partylite Manufacturing Ltd (former) Park Road
Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria LA14 4QT

Proposal:
Application for approval of details reserved by
condition no. 4 (Proposed Waste Transfer Station
(County Matter)

Ward:
Ormsgill Ward

Parish:
Askam and
Ireleth Parish
Council

Case Officer:
Jason Hipkiss

Reference:
B18/2019/0617

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
16/10/2019

Location:
Risedale Retirement Home, Abbey Road, Barrow-
in-Furness Cumbria LA14 5LE

Proposal:
First floor extension to form sluice and bedroom.

Ward:
Parkside Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Jennifer
Dickinson

Page 17

Agenda Item 7



   

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Reference:
B18/2019/0653

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
30/10/2019

Location:
Devonshire Dock Hall, North Road (Land South of)
and South of Central Yard Facility, Bridge Road,
Barrow-in-Furness, Cumbria

Proposal:
Installation of metal acoustic perimeter fences with
access gates to a height of 4.5m  to enclose
proposed transformers

Ward:
Barrow Island
Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Maureen Smith

Reference:
B21/2019/0657

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
21/10/2019

Location:
23 Abbotsmead Approach, Barrow-in-Furness,
Cumbria, LA13 0BS

Proposal:
Proposed attached side covered storage area
between dwelling and  boundary wall with wrap
around roof to form front canopy.

Ward:
Newbarns
Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Jennifer
Dickinson

Reference:
B21/2019/0644

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
21/10/2019

Location:
50 Balmoral Drive, Barrow-in-Furness, Cumbria,
LA13 0HY

Proposal:
Erection of two storey side extension and full width
single storey rear extension.

Ward:
Roosecote
Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Jennifer
Dickinson

Reference:
B28/2019/0339

Decision:
APPROVED

Decision Date:
11/11/2019

Location:
Proposed Housing Development at Dalton Lane
Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria

Proposal:
Application for approval of details reserved by
Condition No. 5 (Surface Water Drainage), No. 7
(Highway Details) No. 11 (Archaeological Work)
No. 17 (Reasonable Avoidance Measures re GCN)
No. 18 (Construction Method Statement) and No.
22(Field Investigation and Risk Assessment) of
planning permission 2018/0798(Outline planning
permission for approximately 142 dwellings with
associated open space and landscaping

Ward:
Hawcoat Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Charles Wilton

Page 18

Agenda Item 7



   

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Reference:
B28/2019/9005

Decision:
COMMSENT

Decision Date:
07/11/2019

Location:
Bennett Bank Landfill Site Hawthwaite Lane
Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria LA14 4QH

Proposal:
Section 73 Application to amend conditions 1, 2
and 4 of planning permission 6/15/9005. Condition
1 to amend the life of permission from 31
December 2017 to 31 December 2019 and allow
restoration to be completed by 31 December 2021;
Condition 2 to amend the approved restoration
scheme; Condition 4 to amend restoration drawing
435-01-06 dated June 2015 to drawing 2166-01-01
dated November 2017. (county matter)

Ward:
Dalton North
Ward

Parish:
Askam and
Ireleth Parish
Council

Case Officer:
Jason Hipkiss

Page 19

Agenda Item 7



   

 

 

 

 

  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

Committee Date : 26/11/2019

Reference
Number:
FV/2014/0493

Application
Type:
Full Plans
Vatable

Received:
14/07/2014

Location:
15 St Lukes Avenue Barrow-in-Furness
Cumbria LA13 9TS

Proposal:
Proposed kitchen/ lounge extension.

Ward:
Risedale Ward

Decision:
Cancel

Decision
Date:
15/10/2019

Reference
Number:
FV/2019/0717

Application
Type:
Full Plans
Vatable

Received:
10/10/2019

Location:
28 Norland Avenue Barrow-in-Furness
Cumbria LA14 4EL

Proposal:
Single storey side extension.

Ward:
Hawcoat Ward

Decision:
Approved

Decision
Date:
21/10/2019

Reference
Number:
FV/2019/0705

Application
Type:
Full Plans
Vatable

Received:
08/10/2019

Location:
West of Duddon Sands Windfarm Ramsey
Way Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria LA14 2GR

Proposal:
Proposed internal alterations and fitting out,
replacement and enlargement of windows at
first floor level.

Ward:
Roosecote
Ward

Decision:
Appcond

Decision
Date:
22/10/2019

Reference
Number:
FV/2019/0712

Application
Type:
Full Plans
Vatable

Received:
10/10/2019

Location:
79 Stainton Drive Dalton-in-Furness Cumbria
LA15 8XD

Proposal:
Single storey extension and associated
internal structural alterations to form open plan
kitchen/ diner.

Ward:
Dalton South
Ward

Decision:
Appcond

Decision
Date:
07/11/2019

Page 20

Agenda Item 7



   

 

 

 

 

  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

Committee Date : 26/11/2019

Reference
Number:
BV/2019/0780

Application
Type:
Building Notice
Vatable

Received:
07/11/2019

Location:
19 Hare Lane Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria
LA13 9EP

Proposal:
Alteration of existing first floor walls to form
new bathroom layout. Fitting of new RSJ &
removal of load bearing wall between kitchen
and existing outhouse. Create opening
between kitchen & lounge, internally cap off
chimney flue and create 2 x openings to
lounge and kitchen.

Ward:
Newbarns
Ward

Decision:
Accepted

Decision
Date:
07/11/2019

Reference
Number:
BV/2019/0781

Application
Type:
Building Notice
Vatable

Received:
07/11/2019

Location:
20 Greystone Lane Dalton-in-Furness
Cumbria LA15 8PX

Proposal:
To create a new window opening (600mm x
1000mm) on the first floor, side elevation
within a new small home office

Ward:
Dalton South
Ward

Decision:
Accepted

Decision
Date:
07/11/2019

Reference
Number:
BV/2019/0730

Application
Type:
Building Notice
Vatable

Received:
17/10/2019

Location:
131 Abbey Road Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria
LA14 5EY

Proposal:
Renewal of all windows to front elevation, rear
dormer, kitchen and dining room.

Ward:
Parkside Ward

Decision:
Accepted

Decision
Date:
17/10/2019

Reference
Number:
FV/2019/0665

Application
Type:
Full Plans
Vatable

Received:
18/09/2019

Location:
Car park at former HIP building Buccleuch
Dock Road Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria

Proposal:
Construction of a car park with mezzanine
deck to provide a total of 841 spaces.

Ward:
Barrow Island
Ward

Decision:
Appcond

Decision
Date:
25/10/2019

Page 21

Agenda Item 7



   

 

 

 

 

  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

Committee Date : 26/11/2019

Reference
Number:
FV/2019/0680

Application
Type:
Full Plans
Vatable

Received:
26/09/2019

Location:
Apollo Bingo, Unit A Hollywood Park Hindpool
Road Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria LA14 2NA

Proposal:
Erection of a smoking shelter

Ward:
Hindpool Ward

Decision:
Appcond

Decision
Date:
28/10/2019

Reference
Number:
BV/2019/0729

Application
Type:
Building Notice
Vatable

Received:
16/10/2019

Location:
86 Redoak Avenue Barrow-in-Furness
Cumbria LA13 0RN

Proposal:
Addition of down stairs WC with saniflow unit
and extraction.

Ward:
Roosecote
Ward

Decision:
Accepted

Decision
Date:
16/10/2019

Reference
Number:
BV/2019/0731

Application
Type:
Building Notice
Vatable

Received:
17/10/2019

Location:
16 Chestnut Walk Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria
LA13 0JB

Proposal:
Formation of an en-suite to first floor bedroom.

Ward:
Roosecote
Ward

Decision:
Accepted

Decision
Date:
17/10/2019

Reference
Number:
RA/2019/0789

Application
Type:
Regularisation

Received:
11/11/2019

Location:
4 Sheeplands Grove Barrow-in-Furness
Cumbria LA13 0AS

Proposal:
Regularisation of electrics.

Ward:
Newbarns
Ward

Decision:
Regular

Decision
Date:
11/11/2019

Page 22

Agenda Item 7



   

 

 

 

 

  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

Committee Date : 26/11/2019

Reference
Number:
BV/2019/0791

Application
Type:
Building Notice
Vatable

Received:
11/11/2019

Location:
1 Newbarns Court Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria
LA13 9FB

Proposal:
Wet room adaptation.

Ward:
Newbarns
Ward

Decision:
Accepted

Decision
Date:
11/11/2019

Reference
Number:
FV/2019/0771

Application
Type:
Full Plans
Vatable

Received:
31/10/2019

Location:
42 Athens Drive Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria
LA13 9ND

Proposal:
Rear living area extension.

Ward:
Newbarns
Ward

Decision:
Approved

Decision
Date:
07/11/2019

Reference
Number:
BV/2019/0784

Application
Type:
Building Notice
Vatable

Received:
08/11/2019

Location:
9 French Street Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria
LA14 3PF

Proposal:
Removal of wall.

Ward:
Walney North
Ward

Decision:
Accepted

Decision
Date:
08/11/2019

Reference
Number:
FV/2019/0774

Application
Type:
Full Plans
Vatable

Received:
01/11/2019

Location:
60 Hollow Lane Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria
LA13 9JD

Proposal:
Loft conversion with rear dormer to provide
bedroom, dressing room and ensuite.

Ward:
Parkside Ward

Decision:
Approved

Decision
Date:
12/11/2019

Page 23

Agenda Item 7



   

 

 

 

 

  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

Committee Date : 26/11/2019

Reference
Number:
BV/2019/0775

Application
Type:
Building Notice
Vatable

Received:
01/11/2019

Location:
29 Langdale Crescent Dalton-in-Furness
Cumbria LA15 8NR

Proposal:
Internal alterations

Ward:
Dalton South
Ward

Decision:
Accepted

Decision
Date:
01/11/2019

Reference
Number:
BV/2019/0754

Application
Type:
Building Notice
Vatable

Received:
28/10/2019

Location:
1 Park Drive Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria LA13
9BA

Proposal:
Installation of 2 roof windows and replacement
of thermal elements to existing second floor
attic room.

Ward:
Parkside Ward

Decision:
Accepted

Decision
Date:
28/10/2019

Reference
Number:
FV/2019/0648

Application
Type:
Full Plans
Vatable

Received:
12/09/2019

Location:
21 Turnstone Crescent Askam-in-Furness
Cumbria LA16 7JT

Proposal:
Single storey rear extension.

Ward:
Dalton North
Ward

Decision:
Appcond

Decision
Date:
07/11/2019

Reference
Number:
FV/2019/0741

Application
Type:
Full Plans
Vatable

Received:
22/10/2019

Location:
30 Holbeck Park Avenue Barrow-in-Furness
Cumbria LA13 0RG

Proposal:
Enlarge rear living room extension.

Ward:
Roosecote
Ward

Decision:
Appcond

Decision
Date:
04/11/2019

Page 24

Agenda Item 7



   

 

 

 

 

  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

Committee Date : 26/11/2019

Reference
Number:
FV/2019/0685

Application
Type:
Full Plans
Vatable

Received:
30/09/2019

Location:
59 Newbarns Road Barrow-in-Furness
Cumbria LA13 9PG

Proposal:
Loft conversion with side dormer.

Ward:
Risedale Ward

Decision:
Appcond

Decision
Date:
18/10/2019

Reference
Number:
FV/2019/0601

Application
Type:
Full Plans
Vatable

Received:
19/08/2019

Location:
C21 BAE Systems Bridge Road Barrow-in-
Furness Cumbria LA14 1AF

Proposal:
Construction of lean to extension to the south-
east and north west elevation, removal of link
corridor to north west elevation, new
pedestrian door to the south east and north
west elevations, enlarged 14m by 10m roller
shutter to north east elevation.

Ward:
Barrow Island
Ward

Decision:
Appcond

Decision
Date:
17/10/2019

Reference
Number:
FV/2019/0424

Application
Type:
Full Plans
Vatable

Received:
10/09/2019

Location:
Langdale Pennington Lane Lindal-in-Furness
Cumbria LA12 0LA

Proposal:
Two storey rear and side extension.

Ward:
Dalton North
Ward

Decision:
Approved

Decision
Date:
05/11/2019

Reference
Number:
BV/2019/0766

Application
Type:
Building Notice
Vatable

Received:
30/10/2019

Location:
18 Smeaton Street Barrow-in-Furness
Cumbria LA14 2EA

Proposal:
Down stairs wet room, thermal upgrade of
ground floor external walls and new window to
back room.

Ward:
Central Ward

Decision:
Accepted

Decision
Date:
30/10/2019

Page 25

Agenda Item 7



   

 

 

 

 

  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

Committee Date : 26/11/2019

Reference
Number:
FV/2019/0722

Application
Type:
Full Plans
Vatable

Received:
10/10/2019

Location:
41 Black Butts Lane Barrow-in-Furness
Cumbria LA14 3AW

Proposal:
Rear single storey extension.

Ward:
Walney South
Ward

Decision:
Appcond

Decision
Date:
12/11/2019

Reference
Number:
FV/2019/0773

Application
Type:
Full Plans
Vatable

Received:
01/11/2019

Location:
13 Inglewood Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria
LA13 9UN

Proposal:
Rear sunroom extension.

Ward:
Newbarns
Ward

Decision:
Appcond

Decision
Date:
12/11/2019

Reference
Number:
FV/2019/0480

Application
Type:
Full Plans
Vatable

Received:
18/10/2019

Location:
8 Newton Cross Road Newton-in-Furness
Cumbria LA13 0LZ

Proposal:
Rear living room extension.

Ward:
Dalton South
Ward

Decision:
Appcond

Decision
Date:
24/10/2019

Reference
Number:
DS/2019/0014

Application
Type:
Dangerous
Structure

Received:
24/10/2019

Location:
82 Dalton Road Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria
LA14 1JH

Proposal:
Dangerous window head.

Ward:
Hindpool Ward

Decision:
Danger

Decision
Date:
24/10/2019

Page 26

Agenda Item 7



   

 

 

 

 

  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

Committee Date : 26/11/2019

Reference
Number:
DS/2019/0015

Application
Type:
Dangerous
Structure

Received:
24/10/2019

Location:
103 105 Dalton Road Barrow-in-Furness
Cumbria LA14 1HZ

Proposal:
Broken window to front elevation.

Ward:
Hindpool Ward

Decision:
Danger

Decision
Date:
24/10/2019

Page 27

Agenda Item 7



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

DEVELOPMENT SERVICES 
 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 

FOR DECISION 
 

 
26th November 2019 

 
 

Ladies and Gentlemen,  
 
 The applications within this report have been submitted for determination 
under the Town and Country Planning Acts and associated legislation. 
 
 All applications within this report are “Delegated” to this Committee but can be 
moved “Non-Delegated” by a Member of the Committee under the terms adopted for 
the Scheme of Delegation approved by Council, 16th May, 1994.  Any such motion 
needs to be accepted by a majority of Members of the Committee present (Council, 
8th August, 1995).  All applications left as Delegated will be decided by the 
Committee and will not be subject to confirmation by Council. 
 
 The application plan numbers also refer to files for the purposes of 
background papers. 
 
 
 
 
 

Jason Hipkiss 
 

Planning Manager 
 

Page 1 of 83

Page 29

Agenda Item 8



B21/2019/0628 
Planning Committee  
26

th
 November 2019  

  

  

Application Number : B21/2019/0628 Date Valid :02/09/2019 

Address : 9 Bourne Gardens, Barrow-in-
Furness, Cumbria LA14 3UY 

Case Officer : Barry Jesson 

Proposal : Double storey side extension forming: bedroom 4 and utility room at ground 
floor level, bedroom 3 and bathroom at first floor level, rear single storey extension 
forming a sunroom. Front single storey extension forming a new entrance. Porch and wet 
room, internal alterations and off road parking to front. 

Ward : Walney North Ward Parish : N/A 

Applicant : Mr Lea Cleasby   Agent : Mr Dave Tyson   

Statutory Date : 28/10/2019 
Recommendation : Granted with 
conditions 

Barrow Planning Hub   

  

Relevant Policies and Guidance 

Full details of the policies listed below are included in the appendix 

National Policies 

1. National Planning Policy Framework 2018 - Policy NPPF-127 

Local Plan Policies 

1. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy DS1 - Council’s commitment to 
sustainable development 

2. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy DS2 - Sustainable Development 
Criteria 

3. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy DS5 - Design 
4. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy H16 - Loss of Sunlight 
5. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy H17 - Protection of Residential 

Privacy 
6. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy H18 - Prevention of Terracing Effect 
7. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy H20 - Design of Roofs 
8. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy H21 - Front Extensions 

 

Page 2 of 83

Page 30

Agenda Item 8



Summary of Main Issues 

The main issues to consider are the potential for impact on the streetscene and 
whether any harm results to amenity levels of surrounding properties, primarily from the 
potential to be overbearing/shading and a reduction in privacy. 

Non Material Considerations 

N/A 

Response to Publicity and Consultations 

Neighbours Consulted 

Street Name Properties 
Bourne Gardens 11, 12, 5, 7, 
Irwell Road 3, 5, 7, 
West Shore Road 64, 66, 
   

Responses Support Object Neutral 

1 0 1 0 

Objection Summary  

Level of enclosure, shading and loss of sunlight. 

  

Organisations Consulted 

Consultee 
Barrow Borough Council (Building Control) 
Barrow Borough Council (Estates) 

List of Organisation Responses 

  
Barrow Borough Council (Building Control) 03/09/2019  

“Building regulation approval required for the proposals.” 

 

 

 

Page 3 of 83

Page 31

Agenda Item 8



Officers Report 

1. Site and Locality 

1.1 The property is a post-war semi-detached dwelling, located at the southern end of the 
cul-de-sac of Bourne Gardens.  The property has a larger than typical plot due to the 
angled position of the dwelling around the turning head of the cul-de-sac.  Off-road parking 
for 2 cars is available to the front of the property. 

2. Proposal Details 

2.1 Double storey side extension forming: bedroom 4 and utility room at ground floor level, 
bedroom 3 and bathroom at first floor level, rear single storey extension forming a sun-
room. Front single storey extension forming a new entrance. Porch and wet room, internal 
alterations and off road parking to front. 

3. Relevant History 

 
3.1 B21/2010/1508 7 Irwell Road Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria LA14 3WA Two storey 
extension to side elevation and a conservatory to rear. Appcond 02-MAR-2011 
 
3.2 B31/2011/0489 7 Irwell Road Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria LA14 3WA Application for a 
Non-Material Amendment following grant of planning permission 2010/1508 (Two storey 
extension to side elevation and a conservatory to rear) to alter widths and locations of front, 
rear and gable elevation windows/doors and remove brick Approved 23-AUG-2011 

4. Officer Assessment 

4.1 The application comprises 3 main elements, a two storey side extension, a rear single 
storey extension and a front/porch extension, with each considered separately 
below.  Overall the property gains one additional bedroom. 

Two-storey side extension 

4.2 This is the largest element of the proposal, providing a ground floor bedroom/office and 
utility, and, on the 1st floor, a re-located bedroom and bathroom. The existing bedrooms 
and bathroom upstairs are to be re-arranged and enlarged, resulting in a total of 4.  The 
footprint of the extension is approximately 6m x 4m, running the length of the side 
elevation.  A hipped roof arrangement is proposed, with front and rear gable walls.  This is 
similar to the extension approved at Irwell Rd, immediately to the east of the application 
site.  Visually the extension is different to the predominant side gable design of the 
properties, but this design has the advantage of limiting the bulk of the roof design, which 
reduces the height of the extension closest to the neighbour.  The resulting design isn't 
completely alien to the area; a number of short terraces are 'book-ended' by such designs, 
and the property to the east also features this roof design.  Both the separation and the 
angled, non-linear nature of the plot layouts prevent any resulting terracing effect as per 
Policy H18. 

Page 4 of 83

Page 32

Agenda Item 8



 

4.3 An objection has been received on the basis of a loss of light to the garden and a sense 
of enclosure from a neighbour.  However, the arrangement and separation between the 
properties precludes this to any significant degree.  A small area of shading will result on 
the southern section of the neighbours garden, which at a typical point extends 
approximately 20m in width (measured north to south).  Sunlight will be unobstructed by the 
proposal to the northern half of the garden, whilst the remainder is unaffected until early 
afternoon.  The side extension is set in 1.6m at the closest point to the shared boundary, 
with a further 6m to the side of the neighbours property.  Such separation prevents any 
excessive sense of enclosure both from within the property and the majority of the garden. 

4.4 A new window is proposed in the rear 1st floor elevation, serving a bathroom, whilst an 
existing 1st floor rear window is enlarged, serving a hallway.  Neither window raises privacy 
concern given they do not serve habitable rooms.  The front windows (bedroom and 
utility) maintain existing privacy levels, but furthermore overlook the road and not any direct 
facing windows of neighbouring properties.  The rear window is screened by boundary 
walls, whilst a side door serves a non habitable utility room.  It is therefore consistent with 
Policy H17. 

Rear extension 

4.5 The proposed diner/conservatory is proposed to extend the full width of the original 
dwelling, ending where the proposed side extension begins.  Two large windows overlook 
the garden and benefit from the existing boundary screening, as do the side french doors.  
Two large roof lanterns are located on the flat/mansard roof to provide additional daylight.  
As the rear of the property faces southeast the extension has no significant impact on the 
adjoining neighbour, which has a small conservatory, receiving unobstructed sunlight after 
approximately 10 a.m. 

Front extension 

4.6 The existing porch is to be widened, maintaining the same projection as at present.  This 
will allow a larger entrance hall and a wet room.  Again, the windows face onto the street 
and do not serve or face habitable rooms, preventing any loss of privacy.  The design has 
been amended from having side gable ends to providing a hip to each end of the enlarged 
porch roof.  This provides an improved aesthetic and better matches the style of the 
remaining porches in the street and the hipped roof proposed in the main extension.  A 
slate roof is proposed to match the existing dwelling. 

4.7 An enlarged permeable block paved driveway is proposed to the front which, whilst 
stating it will accommodate two vehicles, likely allows for three vehicles to park off-road.  

 

 

 

Page 5 of 83

Page 33

Agenda Item 8



5. Conclusions 

5.1 The three elements combine to provide a substantial enlargement to the property.  
Having assessed the extensions and applied the BRE daylight and sunlight guidance, it is 
apparent that only a very low level of harm results to adjacent garden areas with no harm to 
dwellings themselves.  The resultant separation prevents any significant level of enclosure; 
where enclosure increases it affects only a small area of the garden and is not dissimilar to 
the relationships of other properties in the area.  The design of the extensions has been 
improved following amendment and contribute positively to the local character. 

6. Recommendation 
 
I recommend that Planning Permission be GRANTED subject to the Standard Duration 
Limit and the following conditions : - 

  
1. The development must be begun not later than the expiration of three years beginning 
with the date of this permission. 
 
Reason 
 
Required to be imposed pursuant to Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 
1990, as amended by Section 51 of the Planning & Compulsory Purchase Act 2004. 
 
Compliance with Approved Plans 
 
2. The development shall be carried out and completed in all respects in accordance with 
the application dated 28/08/19 and the hereby approved documents defined by this 
permission as listed below, except where varied by conditions attached to this consent. 
 
1-LC-12, 
2-LC-12 rev A, 
3-LC-12, 
4-LC-12, 
5-LC-12, 
6-LC-12 rev A, 
7-LC-12, 
8-LC-12 rev A, 
9-LC-12, 
10-LC-12, 
11-LC-12, 
12-LC-12 rev A. 
 
Reason 
 
To ensure that the development is carried out only as indicated on the drawings approved 
by the Planning Authority. 

 

Page 6 of 83

Page 34

Agenda Item 8



 
3. The materials to be used in the construction of the external surfaces, including walls, 
roofs, doors, and windows of the extensions hereby permitted shall be of the same type, 
colour and texture as those used in the existing building. 

 
Reason 
 
To ensure a satisfactory appearance to the development, and to minimise its impact upon 
the surrounding area. 
 
Before Occupation 
 
4. Unless the Planning Authority gives written agreement that it is impractical to do so, all 
hard surfaced areas associated with vehicle parking shall be of permeable construction. 
 
Reason 
 
In order to ensure that the site is adequately drained in accordance with the sustainable 
principles found in the NPPF 
 
Operational Conditions 
 
5. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town & Country Planning (General Permitted 
Development) (England) Order 2015 (or any Order revoking or re-enacting that Order with 
or without modifications) no additional opening of any kind shall be made in the upper 
northeast facing side elevation of the permitted two storey side extension, and no opening 
of any kind shall be made in the southwest facing side elevation of the rear extension 
without the prior consent of the Planning Authority. 
 
Reason 
 
In order to protect the residential amenities of neighbouring properties from overlooking or 
perceived overlooking. 
 
Informative 
  

 Please note that any additional external alterations required under the Building 
Regulations may also require prior planning consent. Please speak to the Planning 
Officer before any such works are carried out. 

 This development may require approval under the Building Regulations. Please 
contact your Building Control department on 01229 876356 for further advice as to 
how to proceed. 

_______________________________________________________________________ 

 

Page 7 of 83

Page 35

Agenda Item 8



Page 8 of 83

Page 36

Agenda Item 8



Page 9 of 83

P
age 37

A
genda Item

 8



Page 10 of 83

Page 38

Agenda Item 8



Page 11 of 83

P
age 39

A
genda Item

 8



Page 12 of 83

P
age 40

A
genda Item

 8



Page 13 of 83

P
age 41

A
genda Item

 8



Page 14 of 83

P
age 42

A
genda Item

 8



Page 15 of 83

P
age 43

A
genda Item

 8



Page 16 of 83

P
age 44

A
genda Item

 8



Page 17 of 83

P
age 45

A
genda Item

 8



Page 18 of 83

P
age 46

A
genda Item

 8



Page 19 of 83

P
age 47

A
genda Item

 8



Page 20 of 83

P
age 48

A
genda Item

 8



B20/2019/0567 
Planning Committee  
26

th
 November 2019  

  

  

Application Number : B20/2019/0567 Date Valid :31/07/2019 

Address : 307-309 (Lisdoonie Hotel) 
Abbey Road, Barrow-in-Furness, 
Cumbria, LA14 5LF 

Case Officer : Maureen Smith 

Proposal : Change of use from hotel function room to use class A1 to form new 
retail store alongside external alterations, associated parking and service yard. 

Ward : Parkside Ward Parish : N/A 

Applicant :  Sansec Developments NS 
Ltd, c/o agent  

Agent : Mrs Jennifer Heron, Lichfields  

Statutory Date : 25/09/2019 
Recommendation : Permission be 
granted with conditions 

Barrow Planning Hub   

  

Relevant Policies and Guidance 

Full details of the policies listed below are included in the appendix 

Local Plan Policies 

1. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy DS1 - Council’s commitment 
to sustainable development 

2. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy DS2 - Sustainable 
Development Criteria 

3. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy DS5 - Design 
4. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy R19 - Neighbourhood 

Shopping Centres 
5. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy R4 - Sequential test for new 

retail developments in Barrow 

Summary of Main Issues 

The main issue is the acceptability of the change of use in terms of the NPPF and 
local plan policies together with further consideration of highway and traffic matters, 
potential impact upon residential amenity, and effects upon protected trees. 

 

 

Page 21 of 83

Page 49

Agenda Item 8



Non Material Considerations 

None. 

Response to Publicity and Consultations 

The application has been advertised by site notice. 

Neighbours Consulted 

Street 
Name 

Properties 

Abbey Road 

206, 208, 210, 210A, 212, 305, 307 309, 311, 313, 3 Arlington Mews, 8 
Arlington Mews, 7 Arlington Mews, 6 Arlington Mews, 5 Arlington Mews, 
4 Arlington Mews, 2 Arlington Mews, 1 Arlington Mews, Workshop at 
Rear of 210, 

Coniston 
Road 

2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 

Furness 
Park Road 

1, 11, 13, 2, 3, 4, 5, Flat 2 6, Flat 1 6, 6, 7, 8, 9, 

Grasmere 
Road 

1, 

Spring 
Grove 

Spring Mount Church, 

   

Responses Support Object Neutral 

5 1 2 0 

Two letters of objection have been received raising the following material 
considerations: 

-additional noise and disturbance 

-traffic impact from deliveries, customers and staff 

-highway and pedestrian safety 

-adequacy of car parking on site and in the area 

-potential danger to cyclists on Abbey Road 

-degradation of the residential area around the site 

-negative impact on amenity 

-the area is not identified as a Neighbourhood Shopping Area in the Local Plan 

Page 22 of 83

Page 50

Agenda Item 8



 

-Abbey Road is identified as a Strategic Route in the Local Plan and so requires a 
high quality street-scape 

-potential danger to cyclists on the Abbey Road cycle lane. 

In addition 1 letter of support has been received expressing gratitude to the 
applicants for involving local residents in discussion before submitting the 
application. The re-opening of Abbey Road as an access is welcomed as is the 
closure of Furness Park Road. There is also a request that delivery times are limited 
to sociable hours with no noisy activities allowed before 7am or after 11pm. 

Organisations Consulted 

Consultee 
Barrow Borough Council (Building Control) 
Barrow Borough Council (Planning Policy) 
Barrow Borough Council (Public Protection Services) 
Cumbria County Council (Emergency Planning) 
Cumbria County Council (Highways) 
United Utilities (Asset Protection) 
   
List of Organisation Responses 
 
Barrow Borough Council (Building Control) 06/08/2019  

“Building regulation approval required for the proposals”. 

Cumbria County Council (Emergency Planning) 12/08/2019  

"This application does not fall within the Detailed Emergency Planning Area of BAE 
Systems, the Public Information Zone of Spirit Energy or the Potential Inundation 
Area for Harlock and Poaka Beck Reservoirs, so this office has no comments to 
make on the application." 

Cumbria County Council (Highways)  21/08/2019 

Highways response:  
 
“Proposal is to permanently close existing access from Furness Park Road and 
reinstate the access from Abbey Road. Proposed changing of the access and traffic 
island will require entering into a Section 278 agreement in order to carry out the 
highway works. This is something applicant will have to apply for after obtaining 
planning permission.  
 
Parking and turning facilities are also acceptable and the arrangements for the 
deliveries does not raise concerns as long as the appropriate license will be 
obtained.  

Page 23 of 83

Page 51

Agenda Item 8



 

 

Conclusion:  
 
I can confirm that the Highway Authority and Lead Local Flood Authority has no 
objections to the proposal, subject to the following recommended conditions being 
included in any Notice of Consent which may be issued:  

1. The development shall not commence until visibility splays providing clear 
visibility of 60 metres measured 2.4 metres down the centre of the access road and 
the nearside channel line of the carriageway edge have been provided at the 
junction of the access road with the county highway. Notwithstanding the provisions 
of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development) (England) 
Order 2015 (or any Order revoking and re-enacting that Order) relating to permitted 
development, no structure, vehicle or object of any kind shall be erected, parked or 
placed and no trees, bushes or other plants shall be planted or be permitted to 
grown within the visibility splay which obstruct the visibility splays.  The visibility 
splays shall be constructed before general development of the site commences so 
that construction traffic is safeguarded.  

Reason:  
In the interests of highway safety. 
To support Local Transport Plan Policies: LD7, LD8  

2. Details of all measures to be taken by the applicant/developer to prevent 
surface water discharging onto or off the highway shall be submitted to the Local 
Planning Authority for approval prior to development being commenced.  Any 
approved works shall be implemented prior to the development being completed and 
shall be maintained operational thereafter.  

Reason: In the interests of highway safety and environmental management. 
To support Local Transport Plan Policies:  LD7, LD8  

3. Before the development is occupied the existing access to the highway from 
Furness Park Road shall be permanently closed and the highway crossing and 
boundary shall be reinstated in accordance with details which have been submitted 
to and approved by the Local Planning Authority.  

Reason: To minimise highway danger and the avoidance of doubt. 
To support Local Transport Plan Policies:  LD5, LD7, LD8  

4. A 2.4 metre x 2.4 metre pedestrian visibility sight splay as measured from 
the highway boundary (or footpath boundary), shall be provided on both sides of 
the vehicular access. There shall be no obstruction above a height of 600mm 
as measured from the finished surface of the access within the area of the 
visibility sight splays thereafter.   

Page 24 of 83

Page 52

Agenda Item 8



 

Reason: To provide adequate inter-visibility between the pedestrians and users of 
the access and the existing public highway for the safety and convenience of users 
of the highway and of the access  
To support Local Transport Plan Policies: LD7, LD8  

Any works within the Highway must be agreed with the Highway Authority. 
Any works within or near the Highway must be authorised by Cumbria County 
Council and no works shall be permitted or carried out on any part of the Highway 
including Verges, until you are in receipt of an appropriate permit (I.E Section 184 
Agreement) allowing such works. Enquires should be made to Cumbria County 
Councils Street Work’s team – 
streetworks.south@cumbria.gov.uk 
  
Fees: https://www.cumbria.gov.uk/roads-transport/fees.asp 
Please be advised that the Highway outside and or adjacent to the proposal must be 
kept clear and accessible at all times”. 

Cumbria County Council (Highways)  09/09/2019 

“The previous use has a much bigger tendency to add traffic to the AM and PM 
commute traffic. 

The Co-op trip generation has a different profile and is therefore much less likely to 
add to the congestion mentioned in the objectors letter. 

The Author of the letter also mentioned the HGV movements from the current 
access. As you are aware the proposed store will close off that access and it is 
stated in their TS that there will be no turning manoeuvres. This will be a highway 
benefit. 

I am content with our response”. 

   

Officers Report 

1. Site and Locality 

1.1 Approximately 0.14Ha in area, the application site comprises of the original three 
storey property, (previously meeting rooms and a private dwelling) which was subject 
to several extensions in the mid 1970s to create a flat roofed lounge and function 
room along its southern side. The site is enclosed by the original brick wall, and 
bounded by Abbey Road to the front, Furness Park Road to the side and Grasmere 
Road at the rear. Vehicular access is currently taken from Furness Park Road. 

 

 

Page 25 of 83

Page 53

Agenda Item 8



1.2 The site is in a predominantly residential area fronting onto one of Barrow's main 
thoroughfares, just south of the junction of Abbey Road with Hollow Lane and 
Hawcoat Lane. Around this junction is a cluster of commercial properties consisting 
of a filling station with small shop, car sales, and the Strawberry Hotel. To the west of 
the site are traditional grid-iron streets of red brick terraced dwellings, whilst opposite 
are further terraced dwellings and the Spring Mount Church. The location is just over 
1km to the north-east of the town centre boundary, as defined in the Local Plan. 

2. Proposal Details 

2.1 The existing owner of the Lisdoonie Hotel is looking to rationalise their existing 
business; the hotel function room is not in frequent use and no longer forms a key 
part of the hotel's business model. It is proposed to split the site so that a new Co-op 
store would replace this part of the business to ensure a long-term viable use of the 
site. 

2.2 The application relates to the change of use from the hotel function room to use 
class A1 to form a new retail store alongside external alterations, associated parking 
and a service yard.The retail element would be 415m² overall, with a net sales area 
of 260m², and is aimed at serving the day to day top-up convenience shopping for 
local residents; the proposed catchment area would be 300m from the application 
site encompassing the residential area to the east and west of Abbey Road and 
much of Newbarns to the north and south. 

2.3 To minimise the impact upon residential amenity along Furness Park Road, the 
existing vehicular access will be closed and the currently unused access on Abbey 
Road re-opened as the main access to the proposed development. This will be 
widened in accordance with highway guidance to improve access and egress with 15 
car parking spaces provided including 2 disabled spaces; additional car parking is 
proposed for hotel guests and staff. It is estimated that 15 new FTE jobs will be 
created. The proposal would result in a 265m² sales area and 150m² service yard. 
Limited external alterations are proposed but include the provision of a new 
aluminium shopfront and alterations to some doors and openings. Some trees are 
proposed to be removed although replacement tree planting is proposed within the 
car park and around the site boundaries as part of a programme of improvements to 
the landscaping. 

3. Relevant History 
 
3.1 1975/1047 309 Abbey Road, Barrow-in-Furness Change of use from meeting 
rooms to private dwelling Approved 06/01/1976 
 
3.2 1975/1047 309 Abbey Road, Barrow-in-Furness Change of use from meeting 
rooms to private dwelling Approved 06/01/1976 
 
3.3 1975/1067 307 Abbey Road, Barrow-in-Furness Erection of banquetting hall and 
cloakroom accommodation at the Lisdoonie Hotel Appcond 03/02/1976 
 
3.4 1975/1067 307 Abbey Road, Barrow-in-Furness Erection of banquetting hall and 
cloakroom accommodation at the Lisdoonie Hotel Appcond 03/02/1976 

Page 26 of 83

Page 54

Agenda Item 8



 
3.5 1977/0312 Lisdoonie Hotel, 307 Abbey Road, Barrow-in-Furness Lounge, bar, 
beer store extension to existing banqueting hall Approved 15/06/1977 
 
3.6 1977/0536 Lisdoonie Hotel, Abbey Road, Barrow-in-Furness Extension to form 
additional lounge/bar Appcond 14/09/1977 
 
3.7 1979/0063 Lisdoonie Hotel, 307 Abbey Road Barrow-in-Furness Lounge 
extension to Banqueting Hall Appcond 14/02/1980 
 
3.8 1979/0253 Lisdoonie Hotel, 307 Abbey Road, Barrow-in-Furness Extension to 
banqueting hall to provide a store extension and a covered passageway on the 
Furness Park Road frontage Approved 02/05/1979 
 
3.9 1984/0056 309 Abbey Road, Barrow-in-Furness Rear two storey 8 bedroom 
extension Refused 24/04/1984 
 
3.10 1984/0317 309 Abbey Road, Barrow-in-Furness Change of use from residential 
to hotel use with dining room for guests/visitors Appcond 24/04/1984 
 
3.11 1987/0593 Lisdoonie Hotel, Abbey Road, Barrow-in-Furness Illuminated free 
standing sign Appcond 13/08/1987 
 
3.12 1988/0046 307-309 Abbey Road, Barrow-in-Furness Two storey rear extension 
to provide eight bedrooms at the Lisdoonie Hotel Refused 17/03/1988 
 
3.13 1988/0288 Lisdoonie Hotel, Abbey Road, Barrow-in-Furness Formation of 
additional entrance to hotel via a new vehicular access onto Abbey Road Refused 
09/06/1988 

 

4. Officer Assessment 

National Guidance 

4.1 The NPPF seeks to support sustainable development and encourage good 
design. 

4.2 In addition, paragraph 80 advises "Planning policies and decisions should help 
create the conditions in which businesses can invest, expand and adapt. Significant 
weight should be placed on the need to support economic growth and productivity, 
taking into account both local business needs and wider opportunities for 
development." 

 

 

Page 27 of 83

Page 55

Agenda Item 8



 

4.3 Chapter 7,"Ensuring the vitality of town centres" adopts the town centre first 
approach. Paragraph 86 advises: "Local planning authorities should apply a 
sequential test to planning applications for main town centre uses which are neither 
in an existing centre nor in accordance with an up-to-date plan. Main town centre 
uses should be located in town centres, then in edge of centre locations; and only if 
suitable sites are not available (or expected to become available within a reasonable 
period) should out of centre sites be considered. " 

4.4 Paragraph 87 advises: "When considering edge of centre and out of centre 
proposals, preference should be given to accessible sites which are well connected 
to the town centre. Applicants and local planning authorities should demonstrate 
flexibility on issues such as format and scale, so that opportunities to utilise suitable 
town centre or edge of centre sites are fully explored." 

4.5 Paragraph 117 advises "Planning policies and decisions should promote an 
effective use of land in meeting the need for homes and other uses" and paragaph 
118 advises "planning policies and decisions should encourage multiple benefits 
from both urban and rural land, including through mixed use schemes" 

Relevant Local Plan Policies 

4.6 Policies DS1 and DS2 set out the Council's approach to sustainable development 
and Policy DS5 seeks to encourage good design.  

4.7 Policy R4 echoes government advice in the NPPF in requiring a sequential test 
for main town centre uses. 

4.8 Policy R19 identifies the main neighbourhood shopping areas within the Local 
Plan area. 

Principle of the development 

4.9 The NPPF subjects retail applications to a sequential approach for the location of 
development and this is the key consideration in determining whether the principle of 
the change of use is appropriate. The site of the proposed use would be considered 
‘out of centre’; it would also not fall within an identified "neighbourhood centre" in the 
Local Plan with the nearest being Ainslie Street, 850m to the south west. The 
NPPF requires applications for main town centre uses to be located in town centres, 
then in edge of centre locations and only in out of centre sites if suitable sites are not 
available elsewhere. When considering edge of centre and out of centre proposals, 
preference should be given to accessible sites that are well connected to the town 
centre. Both applicants and Local Planning Authorities are required to demonstrate 
flexibility on issues such as format and scale. The Local Plan policy does not exempt 
small shops designed to serve local day to day needs from the Sequential 
Assessment. 

 

Page 28 of 83

Page 56

Agenda Item 8



 

Sequential Assessment 

4.10 Notwithstanding the applicant's assertion that the store is designed to meet the 
day to day needs of the Abbey Road area residents, it is  outside of the town centre 
and any identified neighbourhood centre, hence a sequential test is required by 
national policy and Local Plan policy R4. 

4.11 Paragraph 010 of the Practice Guidance explains how the sequential test should 
be used in decision taking. It states that the application of the test should be 
proportionate and appropriate for the given proposal.  Guidance is provided by way 
of a checklist, setting out the considerations that should be taken into account when 
determining whether a proposal complies with the sequential test: 

 with due regard to the requirement to demonstrate flexibility, has the suitability 
of more central sites to accommodate the proposal been considered? Where 
the proposal would be located in an edge of centre or out of centre location, 
preference should be given to accessible sites that are well connected to the 
town centre. It is important to set out any associated reasoning clearly. 

 is there scope for flexibility in the format and/or scale of the proposal? It is not 
necessary to demonstrate that a potential town centre or edge of centre site 
can accommodate precisely the scale and form of development being 
proposed, but rather to consider what contribution more central sites are able 
to make individually to accommodate the proposal. 

 if there are no suitable sequentially preferable locations, the sequential test is 
passed. 

4.12 In line with paragraph 86 of the National Planning Policy Framework, only if 
suitable sites in town centre or edge of centre locations are not available (or 
expected to become available within a reasonable period) should out of centre sites 
be considered. When considering what a reasonable period is for this purpose, the 
scale and complexity of the proposed scheme and of potentially suitable town or 
edge of centre sites should be taken into account. Compliance with the sequential 
and impact tests does not guarantee that permission will be granted – all material 
considerations will need to be considered in reaching a decision. 

4.13 The applicants have submitted a detailed sequential test which considers a 
range of potential sites in the town centre and within the Ainslie Street 
neighbourhood shopping centre. Whilst demonstrating a degree of flexibility, none of 
the identified sites are available to accommodate the proposed development due to 
a range of constraints, including size,location,existing and proposed uses. Due 
regard is also given to the Tesco Stores v Dundee City Council (2012) Supreme 
Court Judgement, in relation to flexibility. Lord Hope observed that " the criteria are 
designed for use in the real world in which developers wish to operate, not some 
artificial world in which they have no interest in doing so".In this case, the applicant is 
considered to have met the sequential test and the site is well connected to the town 
centre being only a 5 minute walk from the town centre boundary with good 
pedestrian and cycling links.  

Page 29 of 83

Page 57

Agenda Item 8



4.14 Additionally, widening the retail choice within the residential 
neighbourhood would enhance the  local shopping offer and provide an improved 
facility for local residents to meet their day-to-day needs within walking and/or 
cycling distance. Consequently the sustainability credentials of an existing residential 
area would be  enhanced. 

4.15 However, whilst the sequential test has been passed in this case, given the 
national and local plan policy " town centre first " ethos an unrestricted A1 use is not 
considered appropriate in this out of centre location. A condition is considered 
appropriate to prevent future unrestricted changes of use without further sequential 
tests, for example to an undertakers, dry cleaners or other retail uses. This has been 
the Council's approach with other similar changes of use outside of the town centre 
such as the Peace and Loaf bakery at Trinity Enterprise Centre, and the tyre fitting 
premises on Roose Road. 

Consideration of impact 

4.16 In accordance with policy guidance, given the scale of development, a retail 
impact assessment is not required. However, the proposal is not considered to have 
an impact on the viability and vitality of the town centre; shoppers will continue to use 
the town centre and the proposal is estimated to absorb only 3% of the total 
available convenience goods market within Barrow. 

Loss of community facility 

4.17 The proposal would involve the loss of the function room within the hotel, 
however the hotel itself would be retained. There are other similar facilities in the 
local area however and the Planning Authority has no powers to prevent the function 
room use ceasing within the hotel. In addition, the convenience store would provide 
an alternative community facility for local residents. 

Transport/Traffic issues 

4.18 Two objections have been received in relation to transport and traffic issues. 
However, the Highway Authority are happy that the development can be 
accommodated within the existing road network, albeit subject to modest changes on 
Abbey Road to provide a right turn facility, and in some ways this will have less 
impact than the existing use. 

4.19 The existing use as a function room has potential to attract evening and 
weekend traffic peaks, with comings and goings late at night, generally with  guests 
arriving and leaving at the same time. However, the co-op store is less likely to have 
late night opening and visitor numbers are likely to  be more spread out throughout 
the day. 

 

 

Page 30 of 83

Page 58

Agenda Item 8



 

Car parking 

4.20 The proposals includes 15 car parking spaces dedicated to the convenience 
store, together with 3 cycle parking spaces. In addition, a separate dedicated area of 
car parking is proposed for hotel guests (13 spaces). It is accepted that stores of this 
nature serve a local area and have a significant level of non-car borne trips however 
in addition the length of stay is generally much shorter also. Comments from the 
County support this assumption and consider the level of on-site car parking 
proposed. In this regard the number of available car parking spaces contained within 
the site for customers should be sufficient to cater for the likely parking demand 
generated by the proposals. 

4.21 In addition, at your officers request, a pedestrian access is retained off Furness 
Park Road to link with pedestrian desire lines to the town centre and residential area 
to the north. 

Servicing 

4.22 The application submission is accompanied by a Transport Statement (TS) 
which sets out typically proposed servicing arrangements for the store. In addition a 
Servicing and car parking Management Plan has been provided with typical servicing 
arrangements for a store of this size. The TS sets out that the proposed store will be 
serviced by a series of delivery vehicles, most likely a 10.35 metre rigid HGV. From 
experience at other stores of this size and type it is envisaged that the proposed 
convenience store will have one rigid vehicle and two transit van type delivery 
vehicles every morning. In addition there will be another transit van type vehicle 
during the day and three other rigid vehicles per week. This arrangement is 
commonplace for convenience stores across the country. 

4.23 Deliveries to the site will be timed and programmed to ensure that the conflict 
with customer vehicles and pedestrians will be minimal and will be targeted to occur 
during periods of lower background traffic flows on the surrounding highway network 
and also avoid busy convenience store trading periods. Servicing will take place via 
the rear of the store using the improved entry and exit access points off Grasmere 
Road and this will be managed by a 'banksman'. Site deliveries will be managed to 
ensure co-ordination between the hotel and the retail unit. 

4.24 The package of parking and highway improvements are considered 
proportionate to the  proposed uses and would result in an environmental and 
highway improvement worthy of some weight. Highway works will be agreed through 
s278 of the Highway Act and include a pedestrian crossing point on Abbey Road and 
a dedicated loading bay on Grasmere Road. 

 

 

Page 31 of 83

Page 59

Agenda Item 8



 

4.25 The existing use already attracts a variety of delivery vehicles and the loss of the 
function room would see a reduction in overall hotel deliveries, which the owner 
suggests could be half of the existing. An objection has been received in relation to 
the servicing arrangement, however the Highway Authority has raised no objections 
and vehicle swept paths have been provided to indicate that the proposed vehicles 
can access and exit Grasmere Road adequately. Since the Service Management 
Plan is based on a generic store, an update once the specifics for the proposed store 
are known, is required by condition. 

Residential Amenity 

4.26 The existing use as a function room has potential to operate late at night 7 nights 
a week with associated comings and goings. In addition, there are other commercial 
uses in the vicinity such as public houses and a petrol station. Given the context, any 
impact on residential amenity is viewed as modest and potentially an improvement 
on the existing. Given the current use an operating hours condition is not proposed. 

Impact on trees 

4.27 The applicant has submitted an arborical report and the Council has also 
engaged its own tree consultant to provide a report. Members will recall that an Area 
TPO was imposed shortly after the application was submitted. This has safeguarded 
the trees on the site and enabled suitable discussions to take place with the 
applicant to agree limited removal, tree management and re-planting of additional 
trees around the site frontage. A tree management and landscaping plan has been 
agreed and the terms of the TPO can be reviewed before it is confirmed in due 
course. The scope of this is to  ensure that only the poorest examples are removed 
and a wider species mix will be provided. This will ensure that the site frontage 
provides an improved quality both visually and in terms of habitat creation. 

Design 

4.28 Limited external alterations are proposed and include the provision of a new 
shopfront and some modest changes to fenestration. The function room is a typical 
1970's design with flat roof and horizontal emphasis, which is at odds with the more 
ornate brick appearance of the rest of the hotel. 

4.29 Overall it is considered that the siting, scale and design of the proposed 
alterations  are considered to be acceptable having regard to the provision of design 
policies, in particular DS5. 

Noise 

4.30 The application proposals seek  to install an area of plant and equipment to the 
rear of the site alongside the formation of a service yard / delivery area to serve the 
convenience store on the northern (rear) elevation of the premises adjacent to 
Grasmere Road. 

Page 32 of 83

Page 60

Agenda Item 8



4.31 A Noise Impact Assessment has been submitted with the application. In relation 
to any delivery vehicle noise impact, it concludes that this should not cause a 
significant increase in noise levels, being barely perceptible even based upon a 
worst case scenario; no specific mitigation measures are proposed to control noise 
from deliveries although some best practice guidance is given which could be 
required by condition to be included in a Service Management Plan. In relation to 
potential noise from future plant, a cumulative plant noise emission limit is suggested 
and the Council's Environmental Health Officer has suggested a condition. The 
nearest residential property is approximately 15m from the service yard on Grasmere 
Road and the noise condition together with the proposed servicing management plan 
should mean any impact on neighbours is modest. These properties are at right 
angles to the application site presenting their gable ends with a limited number of 
windows. 

Assessment against policy 

4.32 The proposals are considered to comply with policies in relation to sustainable 
development, design  and sequential test information.Following the receipt of 
additional information, it is considered that sufficient detail has now been provided to 
indicate conformity with Policy R4 (sequential test). 

5. Conclusions 

5.1 The proposed change of use, revised car parking layout and alterations to the 
existing premises are all considered to be appropriately sited, detailed and designed 
such that the development proposals comply with the provisions of policies. The 
proposal satisfies the sequential test required by national policy and its limited scale 
means that it is unlikely to impact on the vitality or viability of the town centre. 
Highway improvements will cater for the revised pattern of vehicle movements and 
focus them onto Abbey Road away from Furness Park Road. In addition, a 
programme of tree and landscaping works will raise the quality of the site frontage 
and its contribution to the wider Abbey Road street scene. 

Recommendation 
 
I recommend that Planning Permission be GRANTED subject to the Standard 
Duration Limit and the following conditions : - 

1. The development must be begun not later than the expiration of three years 
beginning with the date of this permission. 
 
Reason 
 
Required to be imposed pursuant to Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning 
Act 1990, as amended by Section 51 of the Planning & Compulsory Purchase Act 
2004. 
 
 

Page 33 of 83

Page 61

Agenda Item 8



 

Compliance with Approved Plans 
 
2. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in all respects in 
accordance with the application dated as valid on 31.7.19 and the hereby approved 
documents defined by this permission as listed below, except where varied by a 
condition attached to this consent: 
Proposed site plan Drawing 6647(P)101 Rev K (amended plan rec'd on 15.11.2019) 
Existing and proposed east elevation Drawing 6647(P) 204 Rev B 
Existing and proposed east sections/elevations Drawing 6647(P) 203 Rev B 
Existing and proposed west elevation Drawing 6647(P) 202 Rev B 
Existing and proposed south elevation Drawing 6647(P)201 Rev B 
Existing and proposed north elevation Drawing 6647(P) 200 Rev B 
Proposed roof plan Drawing 6647(P)105 Rev A 
Proposed ground floor plan Drawing 6647(P)103 Rev E 
Proposed block plan Drawing 6647(P) 011 Rev H (amended plan rec'd on 
15.11.2019) 
Visibility splay Drawing 6647(P)107 Rev C 
 
Other documents: 
Sequential Site Assessment by Lichfields received on 7.11.2019 
Planning statement dated 26.7.2019 
Transport Statement Ref 190722-786-TAv4 
Transport Technical References 
Transport Statement Appendices 
Waste process statement 
Noise Impact Assessment Report by Hann Tucker Associated Reference 
26819/NIA1 
Tree survey plan dated 1.11.2019 by BHA Trees Ltd and accompanying planting 
schedule by Greg Thompson dated 9.11.2019 
 
Reason 
 
To ensure that the development is carried out only as indicated on the drawings 
approved by the Planning Authority. 
 
Pre-commencement Conditions 
 
3. No development shall be commenced on the site which is the subject of this 
permission until the following measures have been met to prevent damage being 
caused to those trees which are shown to be retained. Measures to protect those 
trees shown to be retained must include the following; 
 
a) Fencing in accordance with a scheme submitted to and approved by the Planning 
Authority must be erected around each tree or group of trees. This fencing must be 
at least 1.25 metres high and at a radius from the trunk defined by the crown spread 
but not exceeding 4.5 metres. 

 

Page 34 of 83

Page 62

Agenda Item 8



 
b) No excavations, site works, trenches, channels, pipes, services, temporary 
buildings used in connection with the development, areas for the deposit of soil or 
waste, or for storage of construction materials, equipment or fuel, shall be sited 
within the crown spread of any tree without the prior express consent of the Planning 
Authority. 
 
c) No burning of any materials shall take place with within 6 metres of any tree or 
tree groups to be retained without the prior express consent 
 
Reason 
 
In order to ensure that damage does not occur to the trees during building or 
engineering operations. 
 
4. No development shall take place, including any works of demolition, until a 
Demolition and Construction Method Statement has been submitted to, and 
approved in writing by the Planning Authority. The approved Statement shall be 
adhered to throughout the demolition and construction periods. The Statement shall 
provide for all of the following: 
i. the parking of vehicles of site operatives and visitors, 
ii. loading and unloading of plant and materials, 
iii. storage of plant and materials used in constructing the development, 
iv. the erection and maintenance of security hoarding , where appropriate 
v. wheel washing facilities where vehicles will enter the site, 
vi. measures to control the emission of dust and dirt during construction, 
vii. a scheme for recycling/disposing of waste resulting from demolition and from 
construction works. 
 
Reason 
 
In the interests of minimising the impact upon local environmental amenity. 
 
5. Prior to the commencement of vehicular use of the Abbey Road access/egress, 
visibility splays providing clear visibility of 60 metres measured 2.4 metres down the 
centre of the access road and the nearside channel line of the carriageway edge 
shall be provided at the junction of the access road with the county highway in 
accordance with Drawing reference 6647(P) 107 Rev C. Notwithstanding the 
provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development) 
(England) Order 2015 (or any Order revoking and re-enacting that Order) relating to 
permitted development, no structure, vehicle or object of any kind shall be erected, 
parked or placed and no trees, bushes or other plants shall be planted or be 
permitted to grown within the visibility splay which obstruct the visibility splays. 
The visibility splays shall be constructed before general development of the site 
commences so that construction traffic is safeguarded. 
 
Reason 
 
In the interests of highway safety. 
 

Page 35 of 83

Page 63

Agenda Item 8



6. Details of all measures to be taken by the applicant/developer to prevent surface 
water discharging onto or off the highway shall be submitted to the Local Planning 
Authority for approval prior to development being commenced. Any approved works 
shall be implemented prior to the development being completed and shall be 
maintained operational thereafter. 
 
Reason 
 
In the interests of highway safety and environmental management. 
 
7. Prior to the installation of the proposed shopfront on site, full details of the design 
and external appearance of the shop front, including the fascias, shall be submitted 
to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall be 
carried out and retained thereafter in accordance with the approved details. 
 
Reason 
 
The application does not contain sufficient details of the shop front to enable the 
Local Planning Authority to give proper consideration to those matters. 
 
During Building Works 
 
8. The existing vehicular access at the site onto Furness Park Road shall be 
permanently closed for vehicular use as indicated on Drawing reference 6647(P) 101 
Rev K received on 15.11.2019 after the new access hereby approved has been 
brought into use. 
 
Reason 
 
In the interest of road and pedestrian safety and highway maintenance. 
 
9. Any areas of walling required to be infilled shall use matching materials to those 
found on the adjacent area of walling including brick colour, texture and bond. 
 
Reason 
 
In the interests of the appearance of the development and the visual amenity of the 
area in which it is located. 
 
10. Prior to the installation on site, details of any external plant and machinery, 
including size, dimensions, siting and the manufacturer’s specifications shall be 
submitted to and be agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. All plant and 
machinery shall be installed in accordance with the approved details and 
manufacturers specification, including any agreed noise abatement measures. 
 
Reason 
 
In order to enable the Local Planning Authority to assess the implications of any 
plant and machinery on visual and residential amenity since no such details have 
been provided. 

Page 36 of 83

Page 64

Agenda Item 8



 
11. Prior to the installation on site an arborical method statement shall be provided 
for the installation of the proposed retaining wall which will fall within the Root 
Protection Area of trees proposed to be retained on site.The Method Statement shall 
be agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority and the work shall proceed and 
be implemented fully in accordance with the Method Statement. 
 
Reason 
 
In order to safeguard the retained trees on the site and prevent damage to their root 
system. 
 
Before Occupation 
 
12. The shop unit shall not be brought into use until the vehicle access, parking and 
turning spaces have been marked out and provided in accordance with the drawing 
no 6647(P) 101 Rev K received on 15.11.2019.The parking and turning spaces shall 
thereafter be kept available for vehicular use at all times. 
 
Reason 
 
To ensure the development is provided with adequate parking facilities, in order to 
reduce the likelihood of roadside parking that would adversely affect road safety and 
the flow of traffic. 
 
13. A 2.4 metre x 2.4 metre pedestrian visibility sight splay as measured from the 
highway boundary (or footpath boundary), shall be provided on both sides of the 
vehicular access onto Abbey Road before the vehicular access is brought into use. 
There shall be no obstruction above a height of 600mm as measured from the 
finished surface of the access within the area of the visibility sight splays thereafter. 
 
Reason 
 
To provide adequate inter-visibility between the pedestrians and users of the access 
and the existing public highway for the safety and convenience of users of the 
highway and of the access 
 
14. The convenience store, the subject of the application, shall not be brought into 
use until a Service and Deliveries Management Plan, that shall address matters 
including: 
- the maximum length of delivery vehicles; 
- how delivery vehicles and servicing will be managed on site; 
-the proposed delivery route; 
-the proposed co-ordination and management of deliveries with the adjacent hotel 
use; 

 

 

Page 37 of 83

Page 65

Agenda Item 8



 
-the proposed delivery timings and method, timed to avoid peak traffic hours; 
-mechanisms to reduce noise from any deliveries and cages/trolleys , has been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The Best 
Practice Guidance measures included in Section 8.5 of the Noise Impact 
Assessment Report Reference 26819/NIA1 dated 25 July 2019 prepared by Hann 
Tucker Associates should be incorporated within the Service Management Plan. 
Servicing, including deliveries, shall only be made in accordance with the approved 
Service and Deliveries Management Plan. 
 
Reason 
 
In the interests of highway safety and the amenity of adjacent residents. 
 
Operational Conditions 
 
15. All tree planting and management works shall be carried out in accordance with 
the tree survey plan prepared by BHA Trees dated 1.11.2019 and the accompanying 
schedule overview, received by the Local Planning Authority on 11.11.19 and there 
shall be no variation without the prior consent of the Local Planning Authority. The 
approved details of landscaping shall be carried out in the first planting and seeding 
seasons following beneficial use of the convenience store hereby approved, or in 
accordance with the phasing of the scheme as agreed in writing with the Planning 
Authority. Any trees or plants which within a period of five years from the completion 
of the development die, are removed, or become seriously damaged or diseased, 
shall be replaced by the landowner in the next planting season with others of a 
similar size and species, unless the Planning Authority gives prior written consent to 
any variation. 
 
Reason 
 
In the interests of the visual amenities of the area. 
 
16. Prior to the installation on site details of the design of any new walls and fences 
shall be submitted to and be approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. All 
walls and fences shall then be installed in accordance with the approved details and 
shall thereafter be so maintained. 
 
Reason 
 
No such details have been submitted and in the interests of the character and 
appearance of the development. 
 
17. The change of use hereby approved shall operate for the current applicants only 
as a convenience store within the A1 Use Class on the basis of the business model 
and sequential test submitted with this planning application. 
 
 

Page 38 of 83

Page 66

Agenda Item 8



 

Reason 
 
The premises is only considered to be acceptable for the proposed use taking into 
account the unique business requirements of the applicants and the package of 
information that they have provided to pass the sequential test. An unrestricted "town 
centre use" such as A1 or A2 would only be appropriate in this location if adequate 
justification by way of a sequential test is provided. This is in line with the NPPF's 
"town centre first" approach and the need to protect the viability and vitality of Barrow 
Town Centre. In particular, Paragraph 86 of the NPPF states that: “Main town centre 
uses should be located in town centres, then in edge of centre locations; and only if 
suitable sites are not available (or expected to become available within a reasonable 
period) should out of centre sites be considered". 
 
Informative 
  

 Please note that any additional external alterations required under the 
Building Regulations may also require prior planning consent. Please speak to 
the Planning Officer before any such works are carried out 

 This development may require approval under the Building Regulations. 
Please contact your Building Control department on 01229 876356 for further 
advice as to how to proceed. 

 Any works within the Highway must be agreed with the Highway Authority. 
Any works within or near the Highway must be authorised by Cumbria County 
Council and no works shall be permitted or carried out on any part of the 
Highway including Verges, until you are in receipt of an appropriate permit (I.E 
Section 184 Agreement) allowing such works. Enquires 
should be made to Cumbria County Councils Street Work’s team – 
streetworks.south@cumbria.gov.uk 
 
Fees: https://www.cumbria.gov.uk/roads-transport/fees.asp 
Please be advised that the Highway outside and or adjacent to the proposal 
must be kept clear and accessible at all times 

 

   

  

  

  

Page 39 of 83

Page 67

Agenda Item 8



Existing wall to be
retained

3 No. Cycle spaces

The Lisdoonie GIA
324m2 (3,488ft2)

The Co-operative GIA
422m2  (4,542ft2)

Grasmere Road

ATM

F

u

r

n

e

s

s

 

P

a

r

k

 

R

o

a

d

15 No. Customer parking spaces
(including 2 No. disabled)

6 No. Guest house parking spaces
(including 1 No. disabled)

EFL=43.43

EL=43.27

Proposed 7 No.
Parking spaces

Existing wall to be removed to create a wider entrance gap

Existing wall to be reduced by 14 courses.
Existing coping to be removed and reinstated.

EL=42.87

EL=43.23

EL=43.39

Proposed new fence

Proposed new bollard

EL=43.27

PFFL=43.48

PL=43.74

1:88

1:43

1:30

PL=43.33

PL=43.44

EL=43.59
PL=42.87G

G G

Existing ramp to be retained

Entrance/ Exit from
Abbey Road

Entrance/ Exit from
Abbey Road

Existing delivery gates maintained
EL=42.96

PL=43.48

Existing surface to be
lowered by 450mm

Proposed new steps

Proposed new
Goods in door

Existing landscape
to be retained

The Co-operative
entrance

EL=43.76

Proposed new
retaining wall

EL=43.30

EL=43.32

Existing wall to be
demolished, proposed new
boundary fence to be added

Existing entrance door and
canopy to be removed

Proposed plant
area indicative

Proposed
canopy above

Existing wall to be reduced

Proposed new
boundary fence

EL=43.25

EL=43.41
PL=42.96

1:
40

Proposed new bollards

Indicative location of
totem signage

Proposed Stannah
Lowrise lift

Proposed new dropped kerb
Proposed on-street

delivery

110 dia foulpop-up #8

4.
3.

5.
6.

Proposed Timber
Knee Wall

   Key

   Application site

0 2 4 6 8 1610

bar in meters 1:200 @ A3

NORTH

archerarchitects Important note: This drawing  is issued on the condition that it is not reproduced,
disclosed or copied to any unauthorised person without written consent. Copyright
archerarchitects All dimensions to be verified on site.

Drawing number Revision

Date

Checked

Issuing Discipline

DrawnScaleDrawing title

Project

Clientarchersstevenage | suiteB4 first floor | mindenhall court |
high street | stevenage | SG13UN   t: 01438 365 968
e:info@archerarchitects.co.uk
w:www.archerarchitects.co.uk DEVELOPMENT

SANSEC 

Barrow-In-Furness, LA14 5LF
Lisdoonie Hotel, Abbey Road,

Proposed Site Plan 1:250 @A3 AG AA

architecture01.05.2019

6647[P]101 K

By App.
AAAGSite plan amended in accordance to Highways Engineer drawingsA 20.05.2019
AAAGLayout amended in accordance to commentsB05.07.2019
AAAGLayout amended in accordance to commentsC09.07.2019
AAAGProposed landscape reduced at the front boundary wallD11.07.2019
AAAGLayout amended to suit comments E 16.07.2019
AAAGLayout amended to suit comments F 17.07.2019
AAAGStannah Lowrise lift added, notes amendedG23.07.2019

Revision:

AAAGDropped kerb added to rear entrance H25.07.2019
AALWEXISTING WALL REDUCED. PORPOSED KNEE WALL INCLUDEDI 09.10.2019
AALWEXISTING WALL REDUCED AT PEDESTRIAN ENTRANCEJ 11.10.2019
AAMTBOUNDARY LINE AMENDED K 13.11.2019

Page 40 of 83

P
age 68

A
genda Item

 8



The LisdoonieFurness Park Road

The LisdoonieFurness Park Road

Dashed lines indicate external walls to be demolished.

Existing structural opening to be
infilled. New ATM to be installed.

Dashed line indicates existing entrance and canopy to be removed

The Co-operative

Proposed new aluminum shop front and entrance, frame
colour grey(RAL 7043)

Signage zone

Signage subject to separate application
Proposed new bollard

Proposed new fence

Existing ceiling height to be raised,
new flat roof to be proposed

Signage zone

Proposed 2 no. satellite dish
south west facing

ByRevision: App.

archerarchitects Important note: This drawing  is issued on the condition that it is not reproduced,
disclosed or copied to any unauthorised person without written consent. Copyright
archerarchitects All dimensions to be verified on site.

Drawing number Revision

Date

Checked

Issuing Discipline

DrawnScaleDrawing title

Project

Client

DEVELOPMENT
SANSEC 

Barrow-In-Furness, LA14 5LF
Lisdoonie Hotel, Abbey Road,

Comparative South Elevations
Existing South Elevation
Proposed South Elevation

1:100 @A3 AG AA

architecture09.05.2019

6647[P]201 B

Existing South Elevation @ 1:100 scale

Proposed South Elevation @ 1:100 scale

0 1 2 3 4 85

bar in meters 1:100 @ A3

AAAGElevation amended in accordance to commentsA 05.07.2019

AAAGElevation amended in accordance to commentsB09.07.2019

2019/0567

Page 41 of 83

P
age 69

A
genda Item

 8



B20/2019/0124 
Planning Committee 
26

th
 November 2019  

  

  

Application Number : B20/2019/0124 Date Valid :18/02/2019 

Address : 128 Buccleuch Street, Barrow-
in-Furness, Cumbria, LA14 1DA 

Case Officer : Jennifer Dickinson 

Proposal : Proposed conversion from retail use (A1) into 9 serviced apartments (C1) 
including removal of shopfront and provision of additional windows to north west, north 
east and south east elevation. 

Ward : Hindpool Ward Parish : N/A 

Applicant : Mrs H Baldwin c/o Shepherd 
Architecture and Surveying  

Agent : Mr N Shepherd, Shepherd 
Architecture and Surveying  

Statutory Date : 15/04/2019 
Recommendation : Permission granted 
with conditions 

Barrow Planning Hub   

  

Relevant Policies and Guidance 

Full details of the policies listed below are included in the appendix 

National Policies 

1. National Planning Policy Framework 2018 – Paragraph 011 
2. National Planning Policy Framework 2018 – Paragraph 127 

Local Plan Policies 

1. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy DS1 - Council’s commitment to 
sustainable development 

2. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy DS2 - Sustainable Development 
Criteria 

3. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy DS3 - Development Strategy 
4. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy DS5 - Design 
5. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy EC11 - Self-catering Holiday 

Accommodation 
6. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy EC8 - Economic Diversification – 

Tourism 
7. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy H17 - Protection of Residential 

Privacy 
8. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy HC4 - Access to buildings and open 

spaces 

Page 42 of 83

Page 70

Agenda Item 8



 

9. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy I4 - Sustainable Travel Choices 
10. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy I6 - Parking 
11. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy R10 - Sequential test for other main 

town centre uses 

Summary of Main Issues 

This application has previously been agreed by committee subject to the completion of a 
s106 agreement.  Prior to the 106 agreement being finalised the agent has submitted a 
revised layout drawing for consideration introducing an additional flat in place of a proposed 
gym.  Hence, the reason for this application being reported again. 

Non Material Considerations 

None. 

Response to Publicity and Consultations 

The application was advertised on site previously by site notice expiring on 25.3.19. 

Neighbours Consulted 

Street Name Properties 
Allison Street 2, 3, 4, 
Buccleuch Street 126, 146, 
Fenton Street 25, 
   

Responses Support Object Neutral 

1 0 1 0 

Summary of Representations received 

One representation has been received in relation to the impact on car parking in the area. 

Organisations Consulted 

Consultee 
BAE Systems - Emergency Planning Officer (Nuclear) 
Barrow Borough Council (Building Control) 
Barrow Borough Council (HMO) Jayne Parrington 
Barrow Borough Council (Planning Policy) 
Barrow Borough Council (Public Protection Services) 
Cumbria County Council (Emergency Planning) 
Cumbria County Council (Highways) 
Office for Nuclear Regulation (Nuclear) 

Page 43 of 83

Page 71

Agenda Item 8



 

List of Organisation Responses 

 
Barrow Borough Council (Building Control) 22/02/2019  

“Building regulation approval required for the proposals.” 

Cumbria County Council (Emergency Planning) 01/03/2019  

"This part of the BAE site is covered by the provision of the Radiation (Emergency 
Preparedness and Public Information) 2001 Regulations. There are no objections to the 
proposed development based on the information provided but it should be noted that the 
proposed development is situated within the Detailed Emergency Planning Area of the site. 
Cumbria County Council, in liaison with the site operator and the Office for  Nuclear 
Regulation, have certain special arrangements are made for residents/business premises in 
this area and particular attention is paid to ensuring that people are aware of the 
appropriate action to take in the event of an incident at the site.  Accordingly I would be 
grateful if you could, in the event of the application being approved, advise the applicant to 
liaise with this office to allow for further discussion." 

 

Cumbria County Council (Highways) 18/03/2019  

"Thank you for your consultation on the above planning application. 

Highway Authority 

Taking into account the property’s town centre location and existing use, it is considered 
that the proposal will be unlikely to have a material affect on existing highway conditions. I 
can therefore confirm that the Highway Authority has no objection to the proposal. I would 
recommend that the following condition is included on any consent you may be minded to 
grant: 

New ground floor windows and doors abutting the highway shall be of a type which cannot 
open outwards into the highway. 

Reason: To minimise possible danger to other highway users. 
To support Local Transport Plan Policies: LD7, LD8 

With regards to on-street parking permits within the vicinity of the development site it should 
be noted that the Applicant/developer will only be entitled to 60 visitor days per year for the 
full property, due to the use as serviced apartments." 

  
 
 

Page 44 of 83

Page 72

Agenda Item 8



Cumbria County Council (Lead Local Flood Authority) 18/03/2019  

"Thank you for your consultation on the above planning application. 

The Applicant should note that there is some evidence of surface water flooding on the 
highway surrounding the site (1 in 1000 year event). 

The Lead Local Flood Authority has no objection to the proposal as it is considered that the 
proposal will not increase flood risk on the site or elsewhere." 

Office for Nuclear Regulation (Nuclear) 01/03/2019  

"I have taken on board the views of the emergency planners within Cumbria County 
Council, which is responsible for the preparation of the AWE Barrow off-site emergency 
plan required by the Radiation Emergency Preparedness and Public Information 
Regulations (REPPIR) 2001. They have provided adequate assurance that the proposed 
development can be accommodated within their off-site emergency planning arrangements. 

The proposed development does not present a significant external hazard to the safety of 
the nuclear site. 

Therefore, ONR does not advise against this development." 

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------ 

Officers Report 

1.Site and Locality 

1.1 The host property is positioned at the end of a predominantly residential terrace on the 
corner with Allison Street, overlooking the public open space on Emlyn Street. It is set over 
three floors, whilst the rest of the terrace is two storeys. It has most recently (2015) been 
used as a retail premises on the ground floor. Upon researching the site it appears to date 
back until approximately 1874 and has historically been used for a mix of retail, residential 
and warehouse use. It is positioned within a residential protection area as designated by 
the development plan and within the designated town centre. 

2. Proposal Details 

2.1 Proposed conversion from retail use (A1) into 9 serviced apartments (C1) including 
removal of shopfront and provision of additional windows to north west, north east and 
south east elevation. 

2.2 The Class C1 use is wider than just hotels and case law has long established that it 
includes aparthotels and serviced accommodation whereby the units offer short-term self-
contained accommodation. In this instance the supporting information states that the 
accommodation is to be offered on the basis of a maximum letting period of three months. 

 

Page 45 of 83

Page 73

Agenda Item 8



2.3 The submitted plans illustrate a reception area and communal bin store on the ground 
floor together with three serviced apartments. Three serviced apartments and a store and 
plant room are proposed on the first floor and three serviced apartments on the second 
floor. Externally, the shopfront on the north west facing elevation is to be replaced with 
three domestic style windows with two more centrally positioned windows introduced to the 
upper floors. A communal entrance door is proposed for the north east facing elevation and 
the previously blocked windows reinstated, together with a loft window. Three new windows 
are proposed to the south east elevation. The external walls are to be smooth rendered with 
a modern render product and all replacement windows are to be in PVC. The serviced 
apartments vary in size from 18m² to 24m² and all include a sleeping area, small kitchen 
space and en-suite wc and shower room. 

3. Relevant History 

3.1 75/2006/0957 128 Buccleuch Street Barrow-in-Furness - Change of use from storage 
(B8) to retail (A1), reinstatement of windows to front and rear elevations and installation of 
powder coated security shutters to front elevation Appcond 18/09/2006 

4. Officer Assessment 

4.1 My previous report to committee is attached as Appendix A.  Since this report the 
number of proposed flats has increased from 8 to 9.  This has been possible by removing 
the gym area on the ground floor.  No further external changes are proposed as part of the 
creation of the additional flat.  This will be served by a window facing onto Allison Street 
which was originally included in the plans.  The proposed floor-space is shown as 19.0m2 
which is within the range of sizes proposed in the other flats of the property.  As per the 
previous report, a section 106 agreement will be necessary to secure the use of rooms as 
short term lets and prevent any permanent residential occupation. 

4.2 The loss of the gym area is considered acceptable. This was originally submitted by the 
applicant and was not a planning policy requirement. There are several gym facilities within 
travelling distance of the town centre. The increase in the number of flats by one should 
have minimal additional impact. The previous committee decision agreed the principle of 
the development on the site. 

 

5. Conclusions 

5.1 The addition of a further flat within the existing footprint in place of the gym is considered 
acceptable and to accord with both local and national policies. 

 

 

 

 

Page 46 of 83

Page 74

Agenda Item 8



 

Recommendation 
 
I recommend that: 
 
A. subject to the applicant entering into a Section 106 Obligation (which may be a Unilateral 
Undertaking) to secure the following: 
 
-that no apartment shall be used for any use other than as a C1 use; 
-that no apartment shall be used or occupied as a residential dwelling or dwelling house 
(C3 use); 
-that no apartment shall be let or be licenced for occupation for a continuous period of more 
than 3 months to the same occupier or occupiers; 
-not to require customers of any apartment to agree to any minimum period of occupation 
(of whatever duration); 
-to provide to the Council within 14 days of a written request, documented evidence 
regarding the use or occupation of the apartments or any individual apartment, then 
 
B. Planning permission is GRANTED subject to the Standard Duration Limit and the 
conditions set out below: 
 
Compliance with Approved Plans 
 
2. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in all respects in accordance with 
the application dated as valid on 18th February 2019 and the hereby approved documents 
defined by this permission as listed below, except where varied by a condition attached to 
this consent: 
Plans dated 11.3.19: DRC89A/PA/02B, DRC89A/PA/03, DRC89A/PA/04A, DRC89A/PA/05 
 
Reason 
 
To ensure that the development is carried out only as indicated on the drawings approved 
by the Planning Authority. 
 
During Building Works 
 
3. New ground floor windows and doors abutting the highway shall be of a type which 
cannot open outwards into the highway, except in an emergency. 
 
Reason 
 
In order to protect users of the adjacent foot-ways and highway. 
  
Before Occupation 
 
4. On site secure facilities for the storage of recycling receptacles and wheeled refuse 
storage bin(s) of suitable capacities to serve the development must be provided before any 
beneficial use of the premises begins and thereafter permanently maintained to the 
satisfaction of the Authority. 

Page 47 of 83

Page 75

Agenda Item 8



 
Reason 
 
In the interests of environmental amenity by ensuring that there is a suitable provision of 
refuse storage on the site. 
 
Informative 

 Please note that any additional external alterations required under the Building 
Regulations may also require prior planning consent. Please speak to the Planning 
Officer before any such works are carried out. This development may require 
approval under the Building Regulations. Please contact your Building Control 
department on 01229 876356 for further advice as to how to proceed. 

 The proposed development is situated within the Detailed Emergency Planning Area 
of the BAE site. Cumbria County Council, in liaison with the site operator and the 
Office for Nuclear Regulation, have certain special arrangements for 
residents/business premises in this area and particular attention is paid to ensuring 
that people are aware of the appropriate action to take in the event of an incident at 
the site. The applicant is advised to liaise with the County Council Emergency 
Planning office to allow for further discussion of available information:  Senior 
Emergency Planning Officer, Resilience Unit, Cumbria County Council, Cumbria Fire 
& Rescue HQ, Carleton Ave, Penrith , Cumbria, CA10 2FA 

Section 106 legal agreement. 

OR 

If a S106 legal agreement as outlined above is not completed by 28th of January to 
delegate to the Development Services Manager (DM) to REFUSE PLANNING 
PERMISSION. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 48 of 83

Page 76

Agenda Item 8



Page 49 of 83

P
age 77

A
genda Item

 8



Fridge/

Freezer

Fridge/

Freezer

Entrance Foyer

Flat 02

Flat 01

Ensuite Ensuite

Protected fire
corridor

Corridor

21.8m2

23.2m2

Key/Lock Boxes

Bike Store (under stairs)
5.3m2

Meters

Bin Store
3.4m2

0.9m2

Reception
2.8m2

Protected fire
corridor

5.3m2

2.8m2
4.9m2

UP

Assumed foul
drainage

Ground Floor to Ceiling Height 2640mm

Flat 03

Ensuite

19.0m2

Ensuite

Fridge/

Freezer

Fridge/

Freezer

Ensuite Ensuite

Flat 05

Flat 06

Flat 04

Protected fire
corridor

Corridor

Protected fire
corridor

Store

Store

Landing/Stairwell

21.8m2

21.6m2

24.0m2

1.1m2

4.9m2

F
r
i
d

g
e

/

F
r
e

e
z
e

r

Boiler/Heating Plant
3.2m2

1.4m2

4.0m2

14.4m2

UP

First Floor to Ceiling Height 2640mm

Fridge/

Freezer

Fridge/

Freezer

Fridge/

Freezer

2M head height

1.5M head height

Ensuite Ensuite

Flat 08

Flat 07

Flat 09

Protected fire
corridor

Corridor

Protected fire
corridor

Landing/Stairwell

Ensuite

18.0m2

21.8m2

21.6m2

Skylight

1.2m2

4.6m2

15.0m2

DN

Skylight

Eaves Height
2790mm

Eaves Height
2790mm

Ridge Height
4520mm

02BPA

PROPOSED GROUND FLOOR PLAN

Scale: 1:50 @ A1

128 BUCCLEUCH ST

128 Buccleuch St

Proposed Conversion of Retail into Serviced Apartments

L
e
e
 
W

o
r
t
o

n

PROPOSED FLOOR PLANS

DOC89A

128 Buccleuch St, Barrow-in-Furness, LA14 1DA Proposed Conversion of Retail into Serviced Apartments (A1 to C1 User Class)11 March, 2019

PROPOSED FIRST FLOOR PLAN

Scale: 1:50 @ A1

PROPOSED SECOND FLOOR PLAN

Scale: 1:50 @ A1

2019/0124

Page 50 of 83

P
age 78

A
genda Item

 8



Page 51 of 83

P
age 79

A
genda Item

 8



Page 52 of 83

P
age 80

A
genda Item

 8



Page 53 of 83

P
age 81

A
genda Item

 8



 

 

APPENDIX A 

Previous Report  

Page 54 of 83

Page 82

Agenda Item 8



B20/2019/0124 
Planning Committee  

9
th
 July 2019  

  

  

Application Number : B20/2019/0124 Date Valid :18/02/2019 

Address : 128 Buccleuch Street, Barrow-
in-Furness, Cumbria, LA14 1DA 

Case Officer : Jennifer Dickinson 

Proposal : Proposed conversion from retail use (A1) into 8 serviced apartments (C1) 
including removal of shopfront and provision of additional windows to north west, north 
east and south east elevation. 

Ward : Hindpool Ward Parish : N/A 

Applicant : Mrs H Baldwin c/o Shepherd 
Architecture and Surveying  

Agent : Mr N Shepherd, Shepherd 
Architecture and Surveying  

Statutory Date : 15/04/2019 
Recommendation : Granted with 
conditions 

Barrow Planning Hub   

  

Relevant Policies and Guidance 

Full details of the policies listed below are included in the appendix 
 
National Policies 

1. National Planning Policy Framework 2018 – Paragraph -011 
2. National Planning Policy Framework 2018 -  Paragraph -127 

Local Plan Policies 
 

1. Policy DS1 - Council’s commitment to sustainable development 
2. Policy DS2 - Sustainable Development Criteria  
3. Policy DS3 - Development Strategy  
4. Policy DS5 - Design  
5. Policy EC11 - Self-catering Holiday Accommodation  
6. Policy EC8 - Economic Diversification – Tourism  
7. Policy H17 - Protection of Residential Privacy  
8. Policy HC4 - Access to buildings and open spaces  
9. Policy I4 - Sustainable Travel Choices  
10. Policy I6 - Parking  
11. Policy R10 - Sequential test for other main town centre uses  

 

Page 55 of 83

Page 83

Agenda Item 8



 

 

Summary of Main Issues 

The main issue is the acceptability of the change of use taking into account national and 
local planning policy and design issues. 

A concern has been raised by a nearby resident regarding the potential for adverse impacts 
from additional parking demand. 

Non Material Considerations 

None 

Response to Publicity and Consultations 

The application has been advertised by site notice expiring on 25.3.19. 

Neighbours Consulted 

Street Name Properties 
Allison Street 2, 3, 4, 
Buccleuch Street 126, 
Fenton Street 25, 
   

Responses Support Object Neutral 

1 0 1 0 

Summary of Representations received. 

One representation has been received in relation to the impact on car parking in the area. 

Organisations Consulted 

Consultee 
BAE Systems - Emergency Planning Officer (Nuclear) 
Barrow Borough Council (Building Control) 
Barrow Borough Council (HMO) Jayne Parrington 
Barrow Borough Council (Planning Policy) 
Barrow Borough Council (Public Protection Services) 
Cumbria County Council (Emergency Planning) 
Cumbria County Council (Highways) 
Office for Nuclear Regulation (Nuclear) 
   

Page 56 of 83

Page 84

Agenda Item 8



 

List of Organisation Responses 

Barrow Borough Council (Building Control) 22/02/2019  

“Building regulation approval required for the proposals”. 

Cumbria County Council (Emergency Planning) 01/03/2019  

"This part of the BAE site is covered by the provision of the Radiation (Emergency 
Preparedness and Public Information) 2001 Regulations. There are no objections to the 
proposed development based on the information provided but it should be noted that the 
proposed development is situated within the Detailed Emergency Planning Area of the site. 
Cumbria County Council, in liaison with the site operator and the Office for  Nuclear 
Regulation, have certain special arrangements are made for residents/business premises in 
this area and particular attention is paid to ensuring that people are aware of the 
appropriate action to take in the event of an incident at the site.  Accordingly I would be 
grateful if you could, in the event of the application being approved, advise the applicant to 
liaise with this office to allow for further discussion." 

Highways Cumbria County Council (Highways) 18/03/2019  

"Thank you for your consultation on the above planning application. 

Highway Authority 

Taking into account the property’s town centre location and existing use, it is considered 
that the proposal will be unlikely to have a material affect on existing highway conditions. I 
can therefore confirm that the Highway Authority has no objection to the proposal. I would 
recommend that the following condition is included on any consent you may be minded to 
grant: 

New ground floor windows and doors abutting the highway shall be of a type which cannot 
open outwards into the highway. 

Reason: To minimise possible danger to other highway users. 
To support Local Transport Plan Policies: LD7, LD8 

With regards to on-street parking permits within the vicinity of the development site it should 
be noted that the Applicant/developer will only be entitled to 60 visitor days per year for the 
full property, due to the use as serviced apartments." 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 57 of 83

Page 85

Agenda Item 8



 
Cumbria County Council (LLFA) 18/03/2019  

Lead Local Flood Authority 

The Applicant should note that there is some evidence of surface water flooding on the 
highway surrounding the site (1 in 1000 year event). 

The Lead Local Flood Authority has no objection to the proposal as it is considered that the 
proposal will not increase flood risk on the site or elsewhere. 

Office for Nuclear Regulation (Nuclear) 01/03/2019  

"I have taken on board the views of the emergency planners within Cumbria County 
Council, which is responsible for the preparation of the AWE Barrow off-site emergency 
plan required by the Radiation Emergency Preparedness and Public Information 
Regulations (REPPIR) 2001. They have provided adequate assurance that the proposed 
development can be accommodated within their off-site emergency planning arrangements. 

The proposed development does not present a significant external hazard to the safety of 
the nuclear site. 

Therefore, ONR does not advise against this development."  

Officers Report 

1. Site and Locality 

1.1 The host property is positioned at the end of a predominantly residential terrace on the 
corner with Allison Street, overlooking the public open space on Emlyn Street. It is set over 
three floors, whilst the rest of the terrace is two storeys.  It has most recently (2015) been 
used as a retail premises on the ground floor.  Upon researching the site it appears to date 
back until approximately 1874 and has historically been used for a mix of retail, residential 
and warehouse use.  It is positioned within a residential protection area as designated by 
the development plan and within the designated town centre.  

2. Proposal Details 

2.1 The proposal relates to the conversion from retail use (A1) into 8 serviced apartments 
(C1) including removal of the shopfront and provision of additional windows to the north 
west, north east and south east elevation. 

2.2 The Class C1 use is wider than just hotels and case law has long established that it 
includes apart-hotels and serviced accommodation whereby the units offer short-term self-
contained accommodation. In this instance the supporting information states that the 
accommodation is to be offered on the basis of a maximum letting period of three months. 

 

Page 58 of 83

Page 86

Agenda Item 8



2.3 The submitted plans illustrate a reception area, communal bin store and gym on the 
ground floor together with two serviced apartments. Three serviced apartments and a store 
and plant room are proposed on the first floor and three serviced apartments on the second 
floor. Externally, the shopfront on the north west facing elevation is to be replaced with 
three domestic style windows with two more centrally positioned windows introduced to the 
upper floors. A communal entrance door is proposed for the north east facing elevation and 
the previously blocked windows reinstated, together with a loft window. Three new windows 
are proposed to the south east elevation. The external walls are to be smooth rendered with 
a modern render product  and all replacement windows are to be in PVC. The serviced 
apartments vary in size from 18m²  to 24m² and all include a sleeping area, small kitchen 
space and en-suite wc and shower room. 

3. Relevant History 

3.1 75/2006/0957 128 Buccleuch Street Barrow-in-Furness - Change of use from storage 
(B8) to retail (A1), reinstatement of windows to front and rear elevations and installation of 
powder coated security shutters to front elevation; Approved 18/09/2006 

4. Officer Assessment 

4.1 The locality is predominantly residential in character with a scattering of long established 
retail premises, located in close proximity to Dalton Road. This proposal is to bring a vacant 
property within the town centre back into beneficial use.  Its most recent use has been for 
A1 retail, and this proposal seeks to convert the property into 8 serviced apartments 
operating within the C1 use class. 

4.2 The C1  use class is defined within the Town and Country Planning (Use Classes) Order 
1987 (as amended): 

"Class C1. Hotels Use as a hotel or as a boarding or guest house where, in each case, no 
significant element of care is provided." 

National Policies 

4.3 The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) has a presumption in favour of 
sustainable development with an emphasis on good design. Within the NPPF a hotel is 
defined as a main town centre use. 

Local Policies 

4.4 In order to conform to the NPPF, local policies favour development, which accords with 
the development plan, being approved without delay unless material considerations indicate 
otherwise.  There is an emphasis on good design.  Policy I6 makes reference to parking 
and consultation with Cumbria Highways as to the requirements for the area.  H17 seeks to 
protect privacy.   

 

 

Page 59 of 83

Page 87

Agenda Item 8



4.5 A hotel use is defined as a main town centre use within the definitions of the local plan 
and policy R10 states that this use is considered acceptable in the proposed location.  
Policies EC8 and EC11 encourage self catering and hotel development within the urban 
area.  

Principle of the development 

4.6 The proposed use is supported by policy and is acceptable in principle within this town 
centre area. 

Use 

4.7 It is vital with an application such as this to ensure that the property is used as serviced 
accommodation only rather than being used as a way of providing sub-standard permanent 
accommodation in the form of bedsits.  An appropriate way of securing this would be 
through a legal agreement under Section 106 to secure: 

-that no apartment shall be used other than as a C1 use; 

-that no apartment shall be used or occupied as a residential dwelling or dwelling house 
(C3 use); 

-that the apartments should not be let or licensed for occupation for a continuous period of 
more than 3 months to the same occupier or occupiers; 

-that customers of any apartment should not be required to agree to any minimum period of 
occupation (of whatever duration); 

-that the Council should be provided within 14 days of written request evidence regarding 
the use or occupation of the apartments or any of them. 

With these measures in place, it is considered that the proposed use would be acceptable 
with adequate safeguards over future occupation. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 60 of 83

Page 88

Agenda Item 8



Layout 

4.8 Given that the property is to be used as serviced accommodation national space 
standards in relation to residential amenity do not apply. However, the room sizes proposed 
vary in size with the largest measuring 24m²  and the smallest, on the top floor, measuring 
18m² . These sizes should be a reasonable standard for hotel guests.   Each room is self 
contained with an en-suite, kitchenette with cooking facilities, and a sleeping area thus 
giving self catering/hotel type accommodation.  A reception, laundry and cleaning service 
are all to be provided to residents together with shared utility arrangements and a gym 
area.  The rooms are to be provided on a maximum three month tenancy. This is 
considered sufficient to justify the hotel use as opposed to a C3 residential use. Case law 
(Mayflower Cambridge Ltd v SoS and Cambridge City Council 1975) shows that it is the 
transient nature of the occupation of the building which will deem the site to be a hotel use 
rather than a bed sit use.  This can be conditioned accordingly in order to ensure the 
property is not converted without permission to potentially substandard residential 
accommodation in the future. 

Amenity 

4.9 The host property currently has several window openings which have been in-filled in the 
past with the cills being left in place.  As part of this proposal these openings are to be re-
instated and additional openings created.  Whilst there is a 21m separation distance 
prescribed for extensions it does not relate to conversions. However, it is relaxed in 
situations where normal standards do not exist or privacy will not be compromised by 
allowing lesser standards. The property is typical of others in the area with an historic tight-
knit pattern of terraced streets and modest separation distances; this is evident adjacent to 
the site on other properties on Allison Street.  The affected neighbours have been notified 
and no representation has been received concerning this.  The creation of the new 
openings to serve the development should therefore not be considered contrary to policy. 

4.10 The change of use of the site to serviced accommodation will introduce a degree of 
activity, however given the previous retail use and the town centre location this is not 
considered to raise any significant issues. The use of the property is compatible within a 
residential protection area of the town and the hotel use is considered to be a main town 
centre use.  In this regard the application is considered to accord with local policy. 

4.11 Normal standards of residential amenity are not a consideration in this case as the 
property will not be occupied on a C3 basis; in terms of amenity for occupiers of the 
proposed accommodation  light and amenity levels appear to be acceptable whilst directly 
opposite the site is an outdoor amenity space which could also be utilised. There is also 
separate protection within other legislation to deal with noise and disturbances in residential 
properties, it is established practice that planning decisions should not replicate other 
statutes. 

 

 

 

Page 61 of 83

Page 89

Agenda Item 8



 

Tourism 

4.12 Within both the saved and emerging plan there are policies which refer to tourism and 
encourage the development of self catering and hotel uses.  The policy criteria make 
reference to proposals not having an adverse impact on local amenities by virtue of noise 
and disturbance.  The area of this proposal is designated as a residential protection area 
within both the saved and emerging local plan and it is therefore considered an acceptable 
location for this development. 

Parking 

4.13 Parking has been raised as an issue in a representation.  The site is positioned within 
the designated town centre.  The close proximity to the public transport network deems the 
site as a sustainable location for transport.  Local policy defers to the Highway Authority for 
comment. In this instance no objection has been received from the Highway Authority. Long 
and short stay car parks are positioned close to the site and any requirement for parking 
could be met for this.  Additionally, the previous use of the property as retailing would have 
generated some traffic in terms of deliveries, staff and customers and given the town centre 
context any impact is judged as modest. 

Design 

4.14 The design of the proposal introduces an improved fenestration detail to both of the key 
elevations of the property, thus removing significant areas of blank wall. It will bring vacant 
premises back into beneficial use, and improve the overall appearance of the property. The 
window details can be required by condition. 

5. Conclusions 

5.1 This application brings back into use a vacant property within the town centre which is a 
sustainable location.  The proposed use is considered to be a main town centre use.  The  
conversion is situated within a residential protection area of the town and as such 
residential occupation in the form of short-term lets  is considered acceptable  The 
development is considered to accord with both local and national policies.  Due to the town 
centre location the Highway Authority has raised no objection to the scheme.  The 
sustainable location within travelling distance to public transport is considered acceptable 
and the introduction of self catering/hotel accommodation in this location is therefore 
considered to be sustainable development. 

5.2 Given the need to ensure that the property is not used as permanent residential 
accommodation a legal agreement is proposed as a safeguard. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 62 of 83

Page 90

Agenda Item 8



6. Recommendation 
 
I recommend that : 

A.  subject to the applicant entering into a Section 106 Obligation (which may be a 
Unilateral Undertaking) to secure the following: 

-that no apartment shall be used for any use other than as a C1 use; 

-that no apartment shall be used or occupied as a residential dwelling or dwelling house 
(C3 use); 

-that no apartment shall be let or be licenced for occupation for a continuous period of more 
than 3 months to the same occupier or occupiers; 

-not to require customers of any apartment to agree to any minimum period of occupation 
(of whatever duration); 

-to provide to the Council within 14 days of a written request, documented evidence 
regarding the use or occupation of the apartments or any individual apartment, 

then 

B.  Planning permission is GRANTED subject to the Standard Duration Limit and 
the conditions set out below: 
 
Compliance with Approved Plans 
 
2. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in all respects in accordance with 
the application dated as valid on 18th February 2019 and the hereby approved documents 
defined by this permission as listed below, except where varied by a condition attached to 
this consent: 
 
Plans dated 11.3.19: DRC89A/PA/02A, DRC89A/PA/03, DRC89A/PA/04A, DRC89A/PA/05 
 
Reason 
 
To ensure that the development is carried out only as indicated on the drawings approved 
by the Planning Authority. 
 
During Building Works 
 
 3.  New ground floor windows and doors abutting the highway shall be of a type which 
cannot open outwards into the highway, except in an emergency. 

 

 

Page 63 of 83

Page 91

Agenda Item 8



 

Reason 

In order to protect users of the adjacent foot-ways and highway  

Before Occupation 
 
4. On site secure facilities for the storage of recycling receptacles and wheeled refuse 
storage bin(s) of suitable capacities to serve the development must be provided before 
any beneficial use of the premises begins and thereafter permanently maintained to the 
satisfaction of the Authority. 
 
Reason 
 
In the interests of environmental amenity by ensuring that there is a suitable provision of 
refuse storage on the site. 
 
Informative 
  

 Please note that any additional external alterations required under the Building 
Regulations may also require prior planning consent. Please speak to the Planning 
Officer before any such works are carried out 

 This development may require approval under the Building Regulations. Please 
contact your Building Control department on 01229 876356 for further advice as to 
how to proceed. 

 The proposed development is situated within the Detailed Emergency Planning Area 
of the BAE site. Cumbria County Council, in liaison with the site operator and the 
Office for Nuclear Regulation, have certain special arrangements for 
residents/business premises in this area and particular attention is paid to ensuring 
that people are aware of the appropriate action to take in the event of an incident at 
the site. The applicant is advised to liaise with the County Council Emergency 
Planning office to allow for further discussion of available information: Senior 
Emergency Planning Officer, Resilience Unit, Cumbria County Council, Cumbria Fire 
& Rescue HQ, Carleton Ave, Penrith , Cumbria , CA10 2FA 

 Section 106 legal agreement. 

   

 

   

Page 64 of 83

Page 92

Agenda Item 8



128 Buccleuch St, Barrow-in-Furness, LA14 1DA 00PAD0C89A

128 BUCCLEUCH ST

LOCATION PLAN

Janurary, 24, 2019

LOCATION & BLOCK PLAN

Scale 1:1250 @A3

SITE PLAN

Scale 1:500 @A3

PROPOSED CONVERSION OF RETAIL INTO SERVICED APARTMENTS (A1 TO C1 USER CLASS)

© Crown copyright and database rights
2019 Ordnance Survey 0100031673

© Local Government Information House
Limited copyright and database rights 2019
0100031673

N N

2019/0124

Page 65 of 83

P
age 93

A
genda Item

 8



Proposed Conversion of Retail into Serviced Apartments (A1 to C1 User Class)February 4, 2019 PA DRC89A128 Buccleuch St, Barrow-in-Furness, LA14 1DA

128 BUCCLEUCH ST
PROPOSED 3D VIEWS

05

2019/0124

Page 66 of 83

P
age 94

A
genda Item

 8



Fridge/

Freezer

Fridge/

Freezer

Entrance Foyer

Flat 02

Flat 01

Ensuite Ensuite

Protected fire
corridor

Corridor

21.8m2

23.2m2

Key/Lock Boxes

Bike Store (under stairs)
5.3m2

Meters

Bin Store
3.4m2

0.9m2

Reception

Gym
19.1m2

2.8m2
Protected fire

corridor

5.3m2

2.8m2
4.9m2

UP

Assumed foul
drainage

Ground Floor to Ceiling Height 2640mm

Ensuite

Fridge/

Freezer

Fridge/

Freezer

Ensuite Ensuite

Flat 04

Flat 05

Flat 03

Protected fire
corridor

Corridor

Protected fire
corridor

Store

Store

Landing/Stairwell

21.8m2

21.6m2

24.0m2

1.1m2

4.9m2

F
r
i
d

g
e

/

F
r
e

e
z
e

r

Boiler/Heating Plant
3.2m2

1.4m2

4.0m2

14.4m2

UP

First Floor to Ceiling Height 2640mm

Fridge/

Freezer

Fridge/

Freezer

Fridge/

Freezer

2M head height

1.5M head height

Ensuite Ensuite

Flat 07

Flat 06

Flat 08

Protected fire
corridor

Corridor

Protected fire
corridor

Landing/Stairwell

Ensuite

18.0m2

21.8m2

21.6m2

Skylight

1.2m2

4.6m2

15.0m2

DN

Skylight

Eaves Height
2790mm

Eaves Height
2790mm

Ridge Height
4520mm

02APA

PROPOSED GROUND FLOOR PLAN

Scale: 1:50 @ A1

128 BUCCLEUCH ST

128 Buccleuch St

Proposed Conversion of Retail into Serviced Apartments

L
e
e
 
W

o
r
t
o

n

PROPOSED FLOOR PLANS

DOC89A

128 Buccleuch St, Barrow-in-Furness, LA14 1DA Proposed Conversion of Retail into Serviced Apartments (A1 to C1 User Class)11 March, 2019

PROPOSED FIRST FLOOR PLAN

Scale: 1:50 @ A1

PROPOSED SECOND FLOOR PLAN

Scale: 1:50 @ A1

2019/0124

Page 67 of 83

P
age 95

A
genda Item

 8



DN

2M head height

1.5M head height

01PA

EXISTING GROUND FLOOR PLAN

Scale: 1:50 @ A1

128 BUCCLEUCH ST

128 Buccleuch St

Proposed Conversion of Retail into Serviced Apartments

EXISTING FLOOR PLANS

DOC89A

128 Buccleuch St, Barrow-in-Furness, LA14 1DA Proposed Conversion of Retail into Serviced Apartments (A1 to C1 User Class)24 January, 2019

EXISTING FIRST FLOOR PLAN

Scale: 1:50 @ A1

EXISTING SECOND FLOOR PLAN

Scale: 1:50 @ A1

2019/0124

Page 68 of 83

P
age 96

A
genda Item

 8



Fridge/

Freezer

Fridge/

Freezer

Entrance Foyer

Flat 02

Flat 01

Ensuite Ensuite

Protected fire
corridor

Corridor

21.8m2

23.2m2

Key/Lock Boxes

Bike Store (under stairs)
5.3m2

Meters

Bin Store
3.4m2

0.9m2

Reception

Gym
19.1m2

2.8m2
Protected fire

corridor

5.3m2

2.8m2
4.9m2

UP

Assumed foul
drainage

Ensuite

Fridge/

Freezer

Fridge/

Freezer

Ensuite Ensuite

Flat 04

Flat 05

Flat 03

Protected fire
corridor

Corridor

Protected fire
corridor

Store

Store

Landing/Stairwell

21.8m2

21.6m2

24.0m2

1.1m2

4.9m2

F
r
i
d

g
e
/

F
r
e
e

z
e
r

Boiler/Heating Plant
3.2m2

1.4m2

4.0m2

14.4m2

UP

Fridge/

Freezer

Fridge/

Freezer

Fridge/

Freezer

2M head height

1.5M head height

Ensuite Ensuite

Flat 07

Flat 06

Flat 08

Protected fire
corridor

Corridor

Protected fire
corridor

Landing/Stairwell

Ensuite

18.0m2

21.8m2

21.6m2

Skylight

1.2m2

4.6m2

15.0m2

DN

Skylight

02APA

PROPOSED GROUND FLOOR PLAN

Scale: 1:50 @ A1

128 BUCCLEUCH ST

128 Buccleuch St

Proposed Conversion of Retail into Serviced Apartments

PROPOSED FLOOR PLANS

DOC89A

128 Buccleuch St, Barrow-in-Furness, LA14 1DA Proposed Conversion of Retail into Serviced Apartments (A1 to C1 User Class)14 February, 2019

PROPOSED FIRST FLOOR PLAN

Scale: 1:50 @ A1

PROPOSED SECOND FLOOR PLAN

Scale: 1:50 @ A1

2019/0124

Superseded

Page 69 of 83

P
age 97

A
genda Item

 8



Proposed Conversion of Retail into Serviced Apartments (A1 to C1 User Class)February 4, 2019 PA DRC89A128 Buccleuch St, Barrow-in-Furness, LA14 1DA

128 BUCCLEUCH ST
EXISTING ELEVATIONS 1:100 @A3

EXISTING NORTH WEST FACING 
ELEVATION 1:100 @A3

EXISTING SOUTH EAST FACING 
ELEVATION 1:100 @A3

EXISTING NORTH EAST FACING 
ELEVATION 1:100 @A3

DATUM

03

External Walls - Render

EXISTING MATERIAL SCHEDULE

Windows - PVCu

Window cills - Concrete

Doors - Aluminium

Roof Covering - Slate

Rainwater Goods - PVCu 

Window Surrounds - PVCu

2019/0124

Page 70 of 83

P
age 98

A
genda Item

 8



Proposed Conversion of Retail into Serviced Apartments (A1 to C1 User Class)March 11, 2019 PA DRC89A128 Buccleuch St, Barrow-in-Furness, LA14 1DA

128 BUCCLEUCH ST
PROPOSED ELEVATIONS 1:100 @A3

PROPOSED NORTH WEST 
FACING ELEVATION 1:100 @A3

PROPOSED SOUTH EAST FACING 
ELEVATION 1:100 @A3

PROPOSED NORTH EAST FACING 
ELEVATION 1:100 @A3

GF FFL

04A

External Walls - K Rend

PROPOSED MATERIAL SCHEDULE

Windows - PVCu

Window cills - Coloured Concrete

Doors - Timber/Composite security door (with glazing 
panels)

Roof Covering - Slate

Rainwater Goods - PVCu

Band Course - Coloured Concrete

FF FFL

SF FFL

26
40

 m
m

26
40

 m
m

27
90

 m
m

2019/0124

Page 71 of 83

P
age 99

A
genda Item

 8



 

 
 

Appendices of Policies 
 

 

Note to Members 
 

 

Below are the full wordings of the policies relevant to the applications found on the 

agenda today. 
 

 

National Planning Policy Framework 2018 
 

 

NPPF-011 

Plans and decisions should apply a presumption in favour of sustainable development. 

For plan-making this means that: 

a) plans should positively seek opportunities to meet the development needs of their   

area, and be sufficiently flexible to adapt to rapid change; 
 

 

b) strategic policies should, as a minimum, provide for objectively assessed needs for 

housing and other uses, as well as any needs that cannot be met within neighbouring 

areas (As established through statements of common ground (see paragraph 27), 

unless: 
 

 

i. the application of policies in this Framework that protect areas or assets of particular 

importance provides a strong reason for restricting the overall scale, type or distribution 

of development in the plan area (The policies referred to are those in this Framework 

(rather than those in development plans) relating to: habitats sites (and those sites listed 

in paragraph 176) and/or designated as Sites of Special Scientific 

Interest; land designated as Green Belt, Local Green Space, an Area of Outstanding 

Natural Beauty, a National Park (or within the Broads Authority) or defined as Heritage 

Coast; irreplaceable habitats; designated heritage assets (and other heritage assets of 

archaeological interest referred to in footnote 63); and areas at risk of flooding or coastal 

change); or 
 

 

ii. any adverse impacts of doing so would significantly and demonstrably outweigh the 

benefits, when assessed against the policies in this Framework taken as a whole. 
 

 

For decision-taking this means: 
 

 

c) approving development proposals that accord with an up-to-date development plan 

without delay; or 
 

 

d) where there are no relevant development plan policies, or the policies which are most 

important for determining the application are out-of-date (This includes, for applications 

involving the provision of housing, situations where the local planning authority cannot 

Page 100

Agenda Item 8



 

demonstrate a five year supply of deliverable housing sites (with the appropriate buffer, 

as set out in paragraph 73); or where the Housing Delivery Test indicates that the 

delivery of housing was substantially below (less than 75% of) the housing requirement 

over the previous three years. Transitional arrangements for the Housing Delivery Test 

are set out in Annex 1), granting permission unless: 
 

 

i. the application of policies in this Framework that protect areas or assets of particular 

importance provides a clear reason for refusing the development proposed (The policies 

referred to are those in this Framework (rather than those in development plans) relating 

to: habitats sites (and those sites listed in paragraph 176) and/or designated as Sites of 

Special Scientific Interest; land designated as Green Belt, Local Green Space, an Area 

of Outstanding Natural Beauty, a National Park (or within the Broads Authority) or   

defined as Heritage Coast; irreplaceable habitats; designated heritage assets (and other 

heritage assets of archaeological interest referred to in footnote 63); and areas at risk of 

flooding or coastal change); or 

 
ii. any adverse impacts of doing so would significantly and demonstrably outweigh the 

benefits, when assessed against the policies in this Framework taken as a whole. 
 

 

NPPF-127 

Planning policies and decisions should ensure that developments: 
 

 

a) will function well and add to the overall quality of the area, not just for the short term 

but over the lifetime of the development; 
 

 

b) are visually attractive as a result of good architecture, layout and appropriate and 

effective landscaping; 
 

 

c) are sympathetic to local character and history, including the surrounding built 

environment and landscape setting, while not preventing or discouraging appropriate 

innovation or change (such as increased densities); 
 

 

d) establish or maintain a strong sense of place, using the arrangement of streets, 

spaces, building types and materials to create attractive, welcoming and distinctive 

places to live, work and visit; 
 

 

e) optimise the potential of the site to accommodate and sustain an appropriate amount 

and mix of development (including green and other public space) and support local 

facilities and transport networks; and 
 

 

f) create places that are safe, inclusive and accessible and which promote health and 

well-being, with a high standard of amenity for existing and future users (Planning 

policies for housing should make use of the Government's optional technical standards 

for accessible and adaptable housing, where this would address an identified need for 

such properties. Policies may also make use of the nationally described space standard, 

where the need for an internal space standard can be justified); and where crime and 

Page 101

Agenda Item 8



 

disorder, and the fear of crime, do not undermine the quality of life or community 

cohesion and resilience. 
 
 

Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 
 

 

Policy DS1 - Council’s commitment to sustainable development 

When determining planning applications the Council will take a positive approach to 

ensure development is sustainable. The Council will work pro-actively with applicants to 

find positive solutions that allow suitable proposals for sustainable developments to be 

approved wherever possible. 
 

 

The Council is committed to seeking to enhance the quality of life for residents by taking 

an integrated approach to protect, conserve and enhance the built, natural and historic 

environment whilst ensuring access to essential services and facilities and a wider 

choice of housing. This will enable the Local Plan's Vision and Objectives to be met and 

to secure development that simultaneously achieves economic, social and 

environmental gains for the Borough. 
 

 

Planning applications that accord with the Development Plan will be approved without 

delay, unless material considerations indicate otherwise. 
 

 

Where there are no policies relevant to the application or relevant policies are out of 

date at the time of making the decision then the Council will grant permission unless 

material considerations indicate otherwise, taking into account whether: 
 

 

a) Any adverse impacts of granting permission would significantly and demonstrably 

outweigh the benefits when assessed against the policies in the National Planning 

Policy Framework (or any document which replaces it)  taken as a whole; or 
 

 

b) Specific policies in the Framework (or any document which replaces it) indicate that 

development should be restricted. 
 

 
Policy DS2 - Sustainable Development Criteria 

In order to meet the objectives outlined in Policy DS1, subject to other Development 

Plan policies which may determine the suitability of particular sites, all proposals should 

meet all of the following criteria, where possible, taking into account the scale of 

development and magnitude of impact and any associated mitigation by: 
 

 

a) Ensuring that proposed development incorporates green infrastructure designed and 

integrated to enable accessibility by walking, cycling and public transport for main travel 

purposes, particularly from areas of employment and retail, leisure and education 

facilities  

 

b) Ensuring development does not prejudice road safety or increase congestion at 

junctions that are identified by the Local Highway Authority as being over-capacity; 
 

Page 102

Agenda Item 8



 

 

c) Ensuring access to necessary services, facilities and infrastructure and ensuring that 

proposed development takes into account the capacity of existing or planned utilities 

infrastructure; 
 

 

d) Ensuring that the health, safety and environmental effects of noise, smell, dust, light, 

vibration, fumes or other forms of pollution or nuisance arising from the proposed 

development including from associated traffic are within acceptable levels; 
 

 

e) Respecting the residential amenity of existing and committed dwellings, particularly 

privacy, security and natural light; 
 

 

f) Protecting the health, safety or amenity of occupants or users of the proposed 

development; 
 

 

g) Contributing to the enhancement of the character, appearance and historic interest of 

related landscapes, settlements, street scenes, buildings, open spaces, trees and other 

environmental assets; 
 

 

h) Contributing to the enhancement of biodiversity and geodiversity; 
 

 

i) Ensuring that construction and demolition materials are re-used on the site if possible; 
 

 

j) Avoiding adverse impact on mineral extraction and agricultural production; 
 

 

k) Ensuring that proposals incorporate energy and water efficiency measures (in 

accordance with the relevant Building Regulations), the use of sustainable drainage 

systems where appropriate and steers development away from areas of flood risk; 
 

 

l) Ensuring that any proposed development conserves and enhances the historic 

environment including heritage assets and their settings; and 
 

 

m) Development must comply with Policy DS3. 
 

 

Where the applicant demonstrates that one or more of the criteria cannot be met, they 

must highlight how the development will contribute towards the achievement of the Local 

Plan objectives by alternative means. 
 
 

Policy DS3 - Development Strategy 

The Council will pursue an overarching strategy of sustainable balanced growth, 

redistributing development across the Borough, to improve the residential environment 

of the central Barrow area and whilst also allowing some development adjoining Barrow 

and Dalton and within the cordon villages. Other development will be supported where it 

complies with local and national planning policy. 
 

 

Page 103

Agenda Item 8



 

The distribution of housing development is outlined in Policy H2, and Policy H3 contains 

a balanced portfolio of sites, in a range of locations throughout the Borough, both 

brownfield and greenfield in order to support the achievement of this Strategy, other 

windfall developments will be supported where the proposal accords with national and 

local policy. 
 

 

This Strategy seeks to promote the opportunities and strengths enjoyed by the Borough 

and achieve sustainable development that enhances its offer in terms of housing, 

employment, leisure and culture, and encourages inward investment. 
 

 

Policy DS5 - Design 

New development must be of a high quality design, which will support the creation of 

attractive, vibrant places. Designs will be specific to the site and planning applications 

must demonstrate a clear process that analyses and responds to the characteristics of 

the site and its context, including surrounding uses, taking into account the Council's 

Green Infrastructure Strategy. Proposals must demonstrate clearly how they: 

 
a) Integrate with and where possible conserve and enhance the character of the 

adjoining natural environment, taking into account relevant Supplementary Planning 

Documents; 
 

 

b) Conserve and enhance the historic environment, including heritage assets and their 

setting; 
 

 

c) Make the most effective and efficient use of the site and any existing buildings upon it; 
 

 

d) Create clearly distinguishable, well defined and designed public and private spaces 

that are attractive, accessible, coherent and safe and provide a stimulating environment; 
 

 

e) Allow permeability and ease of movement within the site and with surrounding areas, 

placing the needs of pedestrians, cyclists and public transport above those of the 

 

 

f) Create a place that is easy to find your way around with routes defined by a well- 

structured building layout; 
 

 

g) Prioritise building and landscape form over parking and roads, so that vehicular 

requirements do not dominate the sites appearance and character; 
 

 

h) Exhibit design quality using design cues and materials appropriate to the area, locally 

sourced wherever possible; 
 

 

i) Respect the distinctive character of the local landscape, protecting and incorporating 

key environmental assets of the area, including topography, landmarks, views, trees, 

hedgerows, habitats and skylines. Where no discernible or positive character exists, 

creating a meaningful hierarchy of space that combines to create a sense of place; 
 

 

Page 104

Agenda Item 8



 

j) Create layouts that are inclusive and promote health, well-being, community cohesion 

and public safety; 
 

 

k) Incorporate public art where this is appropriate to the project and where it can 

contribute to design objectives; 
 

 

l) Ensure that development is both accessible and usable by different age groups and 

people with disabilities; 
 

 

m) Integrate Sustainable Drainage Systems of an appropriate form and scale; 
 

 

n) Mitigate against the impacts of climate change by the incorporation of energy and 

water efficiency measures (in accordance with the Building Regulations), the orientation 

of new buildings, and use of recyclable materials in construction; and 
 

 

o) Ensuring that new development avoids creating nesting sites for gulls e.g. through the 

provision of appropriate roof pitches. 
 
 

Policy EC11 - Self-catering Holiday Accommodation 
 
Proposals for new self catering holiday accommodation, or extensions of existing units, 
will be approved within the built-up area of Barrow and Dalton and the development 
cordons identified, providing the design, siting, layout and access are satisfactory 

Conditions will be attached to any planning permission to ensure that letting is on a short 

term basis. 
 

 

In urban fringe or rural areas, proposals for the conversion of existing buildings to self 

catering accommodation will be approved where they meet all of the following criteria: 
 

 

a)    The building is structurally sound and capable of conversion without major 

rebuilding, extension or modification to the existing structure; 
 

 

b)    The building is served by a satisfactory access; 
 

 

c)    Services are readily available on site; 
 

 

d)    The buildings are well related to existing buildings or uses on the site where 

appropriate; 
 

 

e)    The number of units is appropriate to its surroundings; 
 

 

f)    The proposal will not have an adverse impact on local amenities by virtue of 

noise and disturbance; and 
 

 

g)    The proposal complies with the relevant policies in the Development Plan. 
 

 

Page 105

Agenda Item 8



 

New build self-catering holiday accommodation within urban fringe or rural areas will be 

accepted where it meets criteria b-g above. 

 
Policy EC8 - Economic Diversification – Tourism 

The Borough's tourism offer will be developed in a sustainable and competitive manner, 

to enhance its role as a high quality tourism destination. The Local Plan supports the 

creation, enhancement and expansion of tourist attractions and tourist infrastructure, in 

order to attract new visitors from outside the area. 

 

Development should be of an appropriate scale located where the environment and 

infrastructure can accommodate the visitor impact, and should not result in 

unacceptable harm to environmental assets. This will be achieved by the following 

measures: 
 

 

a) Ensuring that development does not cause unacceptable levels of disturbance to 

 

b) Ensuring the proposal complies with the relevant policies in the Development Plan. 
 
Policy H16 - Loss of Sunlight 

Extensions to dwellings will be permitted unless they adversely affect the amenities of 

neighbouring properties by virtue of an undue loss of sunlight or daylight or by the 

creation of an overbearing impact or unacceptable level of enclosure. The Local 

Planning Authority will refer to the standards laid out by the BRE (or any subsequent 

replacement standards) on sunlighting and daylighting in its assessments of 

applications. 
 

 

Policy H17 - Protection of Residential Privacy 

Proposals for extensions must demonstrate through good design that an acceptable 

standard of privacy can be maintained between opposing and neighbouring properties. 

Principal windows in the side elevations of habitable rooms at upper floor levels should 

be avoided where the privacy of neighbouring occupiers will be compromised. Where 

privacy is to be protected by distance alone, a minimum of 21 metres will be required 

between the facing windows of habitable rooms of opposing homes. Exceptions may be 

made for the facing windows of ground floor habitable rooms where adequate screening 

exists and in cases where normal standards of separation cannot be achieved and 

existing standards will not be eroded by accepting distances of less than 21 metres. In 

all situations the use of obscure glazing in the principal windows of habitable rooms will 

not be an acceptable measure to overcome the provisions of this policy as this is 

deemed to provide a sub-standard level of accommodation. 
 

 

Habitable areas are defined as living rooms, bedrooms, studies, dining rooms, and 

kitchens with dining areas. 

 
 

Policy H18 - Prevention of Terracing Effect 

Single or two-storey side extensions will be permitted providing that they are designed to 

avoid the creation of a terracing effect that would be detrimental to existing townscape 

character if repeated in a street.  

Page 106

Agenda Item 8



 

 
Policy H20 - Design of Roofs 

Extension roofs will need to match the pitch and materials used on the main building. 

The ridge height must be lower than those on the original building to avoid the creation 

of a dominant extension in relation to the original dwelling or within the wider 

streetscene. 
 

 

Flat roofed extensions may be acceptable to the rear of properties where they do not 

impact upon the streetscene or the amenities of neighbouring properties. They will 

however be restricted at the side or front of dwellings or in any other prominent positions 

that would impact unduly on streetscene form and character. 
 

Policy H21 - Front Extensions 

Single and two storey front extensions will only be allowed where they: 
 
a)    Are not intrusive upon the character of the street scene in the context of the building 

line; 
 

 

b)    Are sympathetically designed in respect of the main buildings existing architecture, 

its scale, and layout; 
 

 

c)    Do not adversely impact upon the amenities of neighbouring occupiers. 
 

Policy HC4 - Access to buildings and open spaces 

1)    Development proposals should make provision for easy, safe and inclusive access 

to, into, within and out of buildings, spaces and facilities. The layout and design of 

developments should meet the requirements of accessibility and inclusion for all 

potential users regardless of disability, age or gender. At the design stage consideration 

should be given to the effects of the proposal on the character and appearance of 

heritage assets and their settings, where applicable. 
 

 

The Council will have regard to the following criteria when assessing development 

proposals: 

 
a)    The design of entrances and exits and ease of movement through and between 

 

 

b)    The location of any development proposal in relation to its potential users; 
 

 

c)    Accessibility to all transport modes, including walking and cycling, and provision of 

adequate parking with the appropriate number of parking bays designated for cycles and 

motor vehicles, including specified disabled bays; 
 

 

d)    Provision of on-site facilities such as public toilets and appropriate signage. 
 

 
2)   Additionally, where there is a requirement to submit a Design and Access 

Statement as part of a planning application it should: 
 

 

Page 107

Agenda Item 8



 

a) Demonstrate the approach to inclusive design; and 

b)    Acknowledge compliance with Part M of the Building Regulations (Access to and 

use of buildings) and refer to BS8300:2009 (British Standards - Design of buildings and  

 

their approaches to meet the needs of disabled people - Code of practice) where 

appropriate. 
 

Policy I4 - Sustainable Travel Choices 

Development will be accessible by a range of sustainable transport options, including 

walking, cycling and public transport. Early engagement with the Borough Council and 

the Local Highways Authority is encouraged. Development likely to generate significant 

levels of transport within isolated and poorly accessible areas will be resisted unless a 

clear environmental, social or economic need can be demonstrated. 
 

 

Proposals should provide direct and safe access to the existing footpath and cycle 

network including pedestrian links between developments and bus stops to maximise 

use of public transport to access green space, shopping, schools, health and other 

amenities. Where this would require the provision of links beyond the development site, 

such as provision of new footpaths and cycleways or a new or enhanced bus service an 

appropriate planning obligation will be negotiated between the local planning authority 

and the applicant. 
 

Pedestrian and cycle routes within new developments must be suitably lit so as to create 

a safe, attractive and useable environment for all. 
 

 

Development proposals located on, or adjacent to, a proposed network of cycle routes 

should incorporate the appropriate section of route, and / or links to it. Where 

development affects the line of an existing route, the route will be required to be 

reinstated, or an acceptable alternative provided. The continuing integrity of the route 

should be maintained through the construction process. Routes, both interim and 

replacement, should be constructed to a standard and design acceptable to the Council 

and consistent with the Green Infrastructure Strategy requirements. 
 

 

Secure cycle parking provision, in accordance with the Council's adopted guidelines, will 

be required in all new car parks, particularly those associated with housing, 

employment, retail, leisure and educational developments. In addition the Authority will 

encourage the provision of shower facilities at employment-generating developments. 
 

 

The Council will encourage the integration of vehicle charging infrastructure within new 

development, particularly commercial development. 
 

 

Policy I6 - Parking 

Proposals for new developments will be required to provide evidence to demonstrate 

that adequate parking provision has been provided in consultation with the Local 

Highways Authority and in accordance with the parking standards in the "Parking 

Guidelines in Cumbria" SPG or any update to it. 

 

Page 108

Agenda Item 8



 

In areas suffering from significant on-street parking problems, greater provision will be 

sought where possible, or alternative arrangements will be required. When applying 

parking standards each site should be assessed on its own merits and, if a developer 

can demonstrate to the satisfaction of the authority that their proposed parking provision 

is sufficient, the 'Parking Guidelines in Cumbria' can be relaxed in favour of the 

demonstrated proposal. 

 
The design of on and off site parking provision will be safely accessible and appropriate 

to the streetscene and character of the local area. Consideration should be given to 

Policy C3 (water management) and Policy DS6 (landscaping). 

 

Policy R10 - Sequential test for other main town centre uses 

To enhance the vitality and viability of Barrow and Dalton Town Centres, new main town 

centre uses are acceptable in principle within the defined Town Centre. 
 

 

Proposals for main town centre uses, other than retail and office uses, in the edge of 

centre (within a 300m radius of the Town Centre boundary) will only be permitted if it 

can be demonstrated that there are no suitable sites within the Town Centre. Such uses 

will only be considered for out of centre locations if there is no suitable site within the 

Town Centre or edge of centre. 
 

 

Proposals for main town centre uses in edge of centre or out of centre locations must 

not prejudice the vitality and / or viability of the Town Centre as a whole. 
 

 

Proposals for main town centre uses will be situated in a location which is, or can be 

made accessible, by a range of means of transport other than the private car and which 

will not add excessively to the need to travel by private car. Where appropriate the 

applicant will be required to enter into a suitable legal agreement such as a Section 106 

Agreement to provide improved access and linkages. 
 

 

Applications which are for the removal of existing goods restrictions on units within edge 

of centre or out of centre locations must also comply with this policy and applicants must 

make clear what the requirements of the operator are in order to ensure the sequential 

test has been carried out fully. 
 

 
Policy R19 - Neighbourhood Shopping Centres 
 

Small scale retail developments, including proposals for changes of use to retail, will be 

looked upon favourably within the identified neighbourhood shopping centres and within 

rural villages where it can be demonstrated that the use serves a recognised local need. 
 

 

Applications that involve the loss of local shops and services that serve a recognised 

local need in residential neighbourhoods will be resisted where there is a need to 

maintain an adequate provision of essential local shops unless the applicant can 

demonstrate that the shop is no longer viable. The premises must have been advertised, 

at a reasonable price, for a minimum of 12 months, no reasonable offer must have been

Page 109

Agenda Item 8



 

 
refused and the property must have been advertised on the open market for at least four 

times in the local media at roughly equal periods over the previous year. 
 

 

Policy R4 - Sequential test for new retail developments in Barrow 

New retail development will be permitted in Barrow's primary shopping area. 
 

 

Where clear justification is provided by the applicant/agent and accepted by the 

Planning Authority for retail development to be located out of the primary shopping area, 

the first alternative should be an edge of centre site. An edge of centre site is one which 

is within 300 metres of the primary shopping area boundary. 
 

 

An out of centre location is the least preferred option and will only be permitted where 

clear and detailed justification is provided and accepted by the Local Planning Authority 

demonstrating that no sequentially preferable location would be feasible. 
 

 

Where it can be justified that a particular retail development is unable to be 

accommodated within the primary shopping area and an edge of centre or out of centre 

location is proposed, preference will be given to accessible sites that are well connected 

to the primary shopping area. 
 

 

Proposals for retail uses in edge of centre or out of centre locations must not prejudice 

the vitality and /or viability of the town centre as a whole and must not cause an 

unacceptable level of harm to the amenity of neighbouring residents. 
 

 

New retail uses must be situated in a location which is, or can be made accessible, by a 

range of means of transport other than the private car and which will not add excessively 

to the need to travel by private car. Where appropriate the applicant will be required to 

enter into a suitable legal agreement such as a Section 106 or 278 agreement to provide 

the necessary access and linkages. 
 

 

Applications for the removal of existing goods restrictions on units within edge of centre 

or out of centre locations must also comply with this policy and applicants must make 

clear what the operational and locational requirements of the operator are in order to 

ensure the sequential test has been carried out sufficiently. 

Page 110

Agenda Item 8



PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 

26th November 2019 
 

 

INDEX 
 

 
 
 

Page Reference  Address Proposal  

2 2019/0628 9 Bourne Gardens 
Barrow-in-Furness  

Double storey side extension forming: bedroom 4 
and utility room at ground floor level, bedroom 3 
and bathroom at first floor level, rear single storey 
extension forming a sunroom. Front single storey 
extension forming a new entrance. Porch and wet 
room, internal alterations and off road parking to 
front.  
 

22 2019/0567 Lisdoonie Hotel, 
Abbey Road Barrow-
in-Furness  

Change of use from hotel function room to use 
class A1 to form new retail store alongside external 
alterations, associated parking and service yard. 

42 2019/0124 128 Bucclueuch Street 
Barrow-in-Furness  

Proposed conversion from retail use (A1) into 9 
serviced apartments (C1) including removal of 
shopfront and provision of additional windows to 
north west, north east and south east elevation.  
 

 

Page 111

Agenda Item 8



This page is intentionally left blank



  Part One

PLANNING COMMITTEE

Date of Meeting: 26th November, 2019

Reporting Officer: 

Planning Manager (Planning & Enforcement)     

(D)

Title:  Updating of Local Validation Criteria

Summary and Conclusions: 

Under the current legislation the Planning Authority are required to monitor 
and update its validation criteria at least every two years.

Recommendations: 

1.  That this Committee endorses the validation criteria to form part of the  
     consultation exercise;

2.  That this Committee agrees to delegate powers to the Planning Manager 
      to make any changes arising from the consultation exercise in order for  
      their adoption and publication in January, 2020.

Report

In 2008 Government introduced a requirement for Planning Authorities to 
adopt validation documents in order to streamline the planning application 
process.  These would inform applicants of the nature and level of supporting 
information needed when submitting an application.  The objective was to 
introduce greater clarity and certainty for applicants, as well as some 
improvement in the quality and consistency of the information available to 
Planning Authorities.

The introduction of validation criteria was also part of Government’s 
increasing emphasis on the speed of determination and delivery of projects.

Validation is the first stage in the determination of an application and it is 
therefore a crucial part of the process.  It is important that, in order to work, 
applicants, especially agents need to engage in the process.  As such, 
Officers direct enquirers to the list in order to minimise delays and, in some 
extreme cases, to avoid disposal of the submission before registration. 

 
Paragraph 44 of the updated NPPF advises that Planning Authorities should 
publish a local list of their contemporary validation criteria for the registration 

Page 113

Agenda Item 9



of planning applications.  This is in addition to the national requirements.  
These documents can be found on our website and Planning Hub.

The purpose of such a list is to provide applicants with guidance as to what 
supporting information is needed to make an application, thus avoiding 
disputes as to what supporting material is required.  It also seeks both to 
improve the quality of submissions and reduce delays in the registration (and 
hence the determination), of applications.  The national advice is that the 
requirements should be relevant, necessary and material to the character of 
the submission.

The guidance goes on to state that the Authority should regularly review its 
validation criteria at least every two years.  This is to take account of changes 
to national guidance and legislation as well as local changes such as the 
adoption of a new Development Plan.

A sample of the amended list for a full planning application is attached at 
Appendix 1.  This will form the template for the remaining validation 
checklists covering a variety of subjects such as listed buildings, 
advertisements, and works to trees.  The instructions have been improved 
and there have been revisions as to the nature, format, and type of supporting 
information that may be required when submitting an application.

There are a number of documents within the list, each relating to a specific 
type of application.  Some are by necessity quite detailed, such as the criteria 
for listed buildings and heritage assets, whilst others are broader in scope 
such as the one for full applications.  The success of the scheme will be 
dependent upon the continued pragmatism and professional judgement of 
Officers.

The draft lists will be uploaded to the Council’s website and Planning Hub 
during the week commencing 2nd December 2019 as part of a public and 
statutory undertaker consultation exercise.  To allow for the Christmas break, 
we will upload the final documents to the same in January 2020.  In order to 
minimise delays I am recommending that any changes be delegated to the 
Planning Manager.

i) Legal Implications

The recommendation has no legal implications.

(ii) Risk Assessment

The recommendation has no, minor or significant implications.

(iii) Financial Implications

The recommendation has no financial implications.

(iv) Health and Safety Implications

Page 114

Agenda Item 9



The recommendation has no, minor or significant implications.

(v) Equality and Diversity

The recommendation has no detrimental impact on service users showing any 
of the protected characteristics under current Equalities legislation.

(vi) Health and Well-being Implications

The recommendation has no adverse effect on the Health and Wellbeing of 
users of this service.

Background Papers

Draft Validation Criteria 2019 documents held by Development Services.

Report Author

J Hipkiss

Page 115

Agenda Item 9



This page is intentionally left blank



Application for Full Planning 
Permission – Validation Checklist

What information do I submit with my 
application?

www.barrowbc.gov.uk
Published  xxxxxx.  These Local Requirements will expire xxxxxx if not renewed.

Page 117

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1

http://www.barrowbc.gov.uk/


Introduction
This document should be used by applicants and agents intending to submit a full planning 
application to the Authority. It provides a checklist of the supporting documentation that may be 
required at the time of submission. The document is intended to be comprehensive in terms of the 
wide range of developments that it covers and in the majority of cases not all of the criteria will 
apply. A pre-application meeting with officers should establish the areas of subject matter and level 
of detail required to support your application.

The checklist will;
 Identify the type and extent of supporting material necessary
 Give you greater certainty 
 Help to minimise the likelihood that validation of your submission will be delayed by us 

having to request more information.

National Requirements1

Forms
 Completed form (3 copies to be supplied unless the application is submitted electronically)

Plans
 The National requirements are for ‘a plan which identifies the land to which the application 

relates’.  This shall be met by providing a plan based on an up-to-date map at an identified 
metric scale.  For built up areas and within villages the location plan shall be at a scale of 
1:1250 (or 1:2500 in the case of larger or more remote sites) and indicate the direction of 
North.  Wherever possible the plan shall be scaled to fit onto A4 or A3 size paper.  The 
location plan will clearly identify the land to which the application relates within a red line and 
within a blue line for any other land owned by the applicant located adjacent to the 
application site.  Three copies need to be supplied unless the application is submitted 
electronically.

 A copy of other plans and drawings or information necessary to describe the subject of the 
application (3 copies to be supplied unless the application is submitted electronically) 
including:

 Block plan of the site (e.g. at a scale of 1:100 or 1:200) showing any site boundaries
 Existing and proposed elevations (e.g. at a scale of 1:50 or 1:100)
 Existing and proposed floor plans (e.g. at a scale of 1:50 or 1:100)
 Existing and proposed site sections and finished floor and site levels (e.g. at a scale of 1:50 

or 1:100)
 Roof plans (e.g. at a scale of 1:50 or 1:100)

Certificates
 The completed Ownership Certificate [A, B, C or D – as applicable] as required by Article 

14 of The Town & Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) Order 2015 
(DMPO). If you are unsure about which Certificate to complete contact the Planning Service 
for advice.

 The completed, dated Agricultural Holdings Certificate as required by Article 14 of The 
Town & Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) Order 2015 (DMPO).

 In addition where Ownership Certificates B, C or D have been completed, notice[s] as 
required by Article 13 of The Town & Country Planning (Development Management 
Procedure) Order 2015 (DMPO) must be given and/ or published in accordance with this 
Article.

1 The national guidelines are subject to change at short notice but we will endeavour to update these at the earliest opportunity.

Page 118

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



Other Information
 Design and Access Statement as required
 The appropriate fee

Local Requirements
Shall include the following as may be relevant to the application:
 Affordable Housing Statement
 Arborical Method Statement
 Archaeology Assessment
 Agricultural Buildings Appraisal
 Air Quality Assessment 
 Biodiversity Survey and Report See-  https://www.barrowbc.gov.uk/residents/planning/planning-

policy/planning-policy-documents/supplementary-planning-documents-spds-other-guidance/ 
 Construction and Demolition Statement
 Contaminated Land Assessment
 Energy Statement
 Environmental Impact Assessment (where required by 2017 Regs)
 External Lighting Assessment, including photometric plan for floodlighting schemes 
 Existing and proposed car parking and access arrangements
 Flood Risk Assessment 
 Foul Sewerage Assessment where non mains drainage proposed
 Green Travel Plan (draft)
 Ground Investigation, including contamination assessment and Remediation Report
 Heads of Terms (Section 106)
 Heritage Statement of Significance and Impact
 Highway details including Management Plan where road is not to be Adopted by the Highway 

Authority
 Homes for Life Statement
 Inclusive Design Statement
 Landscape and Planting Schemes (hard and soft Landscaping or Planting Schemes)
 Landscape Assessment / Landscape and Visual Impact Assessment
 Marketing and Viability Assessment
 Materials Schedule
 Mining/subsidence report/Land Stability Survey – See NPPF link

https://www.gov.uk/guidance/land-stability#considerations-development-management-
flowchart

 Noise Impact Assessment  (where located close to noise sensitive sites)
 Open Space Assessment
 Photographs/photomontages
 Planning Obligations; draft Head(s) of Terms (Council’s legal costs are borne by the applicant)
 Planning Statement
 Private Water Supply Assessment (for isolated developments)
 Regeneration Statement
 Retail Impact Assessment
 Sequential Test for Main Town Centre Uses 

https://www.barrowbc.gov.uk/residents/planning/development-control/planning-forms-
and-guidance/

 Soil Resource Survey and Plan 
 Statement of Significance - if any heritage assets are affected (guidance document available at:  

http://www.barrowbc.gov.uk/residents/planning/development-control/planning-forms-and-
guidance/ 

 Statement of Community Engagement
 Structural Survey (especially barn conversions)
 Sunlight and Daylight Assessment – (in accordance with BRE)
 Surface Water Drainage Scheme / Drainage Strategy / Sustainable Drainage System

(SuDS) 

Page 119

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1

https://www.barrowbc.gov.uk/residents/planning/planning-policy/planning-policy-documents/supplementary-planning-documents-spds-other-guidance/
https://www.barrowbc.gov.uk/residents/planning/planning-policy/planning-policy-documents/supplementary-planning-documents-spds-other-guidance/
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/land-stability#considerations-development-management-flowchart
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/land-stability#considerations-development-management-flowchart
https://www.barrowbc.gov.uk/residents/planning/development-control/planning-forms-and-guidance/
https://www.barrowbc.gov.uk/residents/planning/development-control/planning-forms-and-guidance/
http://www.barrowbc.gov.uk/residents/planning/development-control/planning-forms-and-guidance/
http://www.barrowbc.gov.uk/residents/planning/development-control/planning-forms-and-guidance/


 Sustainable Drainage system details (SuDs) including management plans for future maintenance 
of surface waters.

 Telecommunications Statement
 Transport Assessment
 Transport Form (Cumbria CC) link; http://www.barrowbc.gov.uk/residents/planning/development-

control/planning-forms-and-guidance/
 Town Centre Use Assessment
 Tree and Hedgerow survey to include trees/hedgerows present, trees/hedgerows to be removed, 

the extent of root protection areas, and a management plan for protecting trees/hedgerows 
during construction, to be in accordance with BS5837:2012

 Utilities Survey (for isolated developments)
 Viability Assessment
 Visual Impact Assessment 
 Ventilation/extraction equipment details; scale drawings to include external appearance of flues 

also the noise ratings for fans and associated equipment
 Water Management Statement

 ------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Other Local Requirements
 ALL plans must include a scale bar. 
 If paper copies are submitted you must state the scale and original paper sheet size, in order to 

avoid confusion if the document is reprinted.
 Where work is proposed in close proximity to a boundary, the details of eaves and foundations 

shall to be shown relative to the boundary to a scale of not less than 1:20
 Unique reference numbers are required on all plans and drawings
 All location plans must be correctly licenced and show a valid licence number. This is to ensure 

that the Council do not breach copyright or national agreements by displaying un-copyrighted 
material

 A clear, accurate, and full description of the proposed works is required
 Coordinates shall be provided if the site address has no postcode available.  Applications for 

mast and Turbines developments to include exact coordinates of its proposed location are 
required together with any micro siting criteria.

Finally….It will help if you;

 Include all of the information at the start
 Pay the fee at the time of submission
 Include a document schedule
 Avoid the use of large file sizes (please contact us if files are unavoidably large)
 Please correspond via email

The Council has a dedicated mailbox for submitting electronic applications -
planninghub@barrowbc.gov.uk

Using this mailbox you can: 

 submit applications (up to 20MB).   
 pay online securely via emailed link to applicant or agent.      
 request editable versions of all forms.       
 order ordnance survey plans (pdf format).  


If you would like more information or would like to speak to someone about electronic planning 
applications please contact Pam Kayes on the number shown below.

Contact us
Policy Regeneration and Information 
Development Control
Town Hall
Duke Street
Barrow-in-Furness LA14 2LD    Tel 01229 876387 or Email: planningapp@barrowbc.gov.uk

Page 120

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1

http://www.barrowbc.gov.uk/residents/planning/development-control/planning-forms-and-guidance/
http://www.barrowbc.gov.uk/residents/planning/development-control/planning-forms-and-guidance/
mailto:-planninghub@barrowbc.gov.uk
mailto:-planninghub@barrowbc.gov.uk
mailto:planningapp@barrowbc.gov.uk


Pre-application Advice and Fees

If you need planning permission, we advise you to discuss your proposals with one of our planning officers using our 
Pre-application Advice service.

This will help us understand the project and any potential problems. It also offers a chance to consider wider 
consultation, where appropriate, with the public and other groups which can lead to a better outcome for everyone.

For applicants, paid pre-application engagement will provide greater understanding of the likely issues and policies, 
this should reduce the potential for unacceptable schemes to be worked up in detail, resulting in unnecessary 
expenses being incurred.

Benefits of pre-application discussions include:

the opportunity to identify improvements at a stage when a proposal can still be modified, resulting in better quality 
developments
the increased likelihood of getting planning permission
the opportunity to coordinate investment
a shared understanding of constraints and opportunities
the opportunity to agree what supporting information is required
Identification of proposals which are unlikely to be supported
to establish timescales and explain the planning processes
to speed up the application process and reduced delays further down the line

You are strongly advised to use this service, however it should be noted that the scheme is voluntary and we will 
determine applications that have not been subject to the scheme. However, we cannot accept liability for projects that 
are either delayed due to a lack of information or ultimately refused due to matters that could have been resolved prior 
to submission.

Guidance and fees for Pre-application Advice on new developments
A request for pre-application advice can be made on the application form.

Pre-application Advice Request Form https://www.barrowbc.gov.uk/residents/planning/development-control/pre-
application-advice/

Please read the guidance and fees note below. This will help you to provide as much relevant information as possible 
to ensure we can give appropriate advice.

Pre-application Advice Guidance Notes https://www.barrowbc.gov.uk/residents/planning/development-control/pre-
application-advice/

Charging rates are as follows (correct at March 2018):

Simple Schemes - £120 plus VAT

Small Minor Schemes - £270 plus VAT

Large Minor Schemes - £440 plus VAT

Major Schemes - £680 plus VAT

Strategic Schemes - £880 plus VAT

There is no fee for:
registered charities, except those operating as a business
disabled adaptations
social clubs and non professional sports clubs
community organisations undertaking work for the public benefit

Note
Pre-application advice is officer level advice given without prejudice to any formal decision that the

Planning Authority may make in dealing with a formal application for planning permission. It is not a formal decision 
by the Council as Planning Authority and cannot bind in any way the Council’s final decision on any planning 
application.

You should not rely on the advice as an assurance as to the likelihood of an application being 
successful/unsuccessful.

We will not enter into preliminary discussions on applicable schemes outside of the pre-application advice service.

Processing of subsequent planning applications - The planning service will try and process applications within the 
nationally set timescales of 8, 13 or 16 weeks depending on the type of application. However, applications submitted 
following pre-application advice may take less time to determine.

Contact us
Property Information Team
Development Control
Town Hall
Duke Street
Barrow-in-Furness
LA14 2LD

Email: planningapp@barrowbc.gov.uk

Page 121

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



This page is intentionally left blank



   Part One 

PLANNING COMMITTEE

Date of Meeting: 26th November, 2019

Reporting Officer: Planning Enforcement Officer     

(D)

Title: Enforcement Update Report

Summary and Conclusions: 

The service continues to function and respond in line with current resource 
allocations.  The level of legal intervention has been minimised in order to 
protect the public purse, yet we have resolved many cases by voluntary action 
and redirection to the appropriate bodies.

Recommendations: 

That this information be noted.

Report

This report seeks to provide the Committee with an overview of new 
enforcement activity and investigation over the period January – November 
2019.  Cases are intentionally reported below in a broad fashion in order to 
protect specific vulnerable individuals.

Due to limited resources the enforcement function is stretched but we will 
continue to deal with cases in a manner that minimises potential impacts upon 
the public purse.  Furthermore we have built up relationships with external 
agencies that enable non planning issues to be robustly handled.

During this period 45 formally recorded complaints have been investigated.  
This is in addition to a significant number of enquiries and calls for service 
from the general public and internal partners that have been resolved through 
voluntary action.  Frequent low level referrals from Elected Members have 
been similarly undertaken.  By using prompt, holistic responses and 
interventions, Officers have assisted to identify effective solutions to remedy 
harm before situations escalate.  There has been a wide range of different 
cases to consider.

Most cases have been resolved by negotiation.  Issues relating to parking, 
boundary disputes and neighbour conflict are ever present.  These will not be 
prioritised, as the vast majority are not planning related, but are civil matters.  
Where appropriate we will redirect complainants to the relevant body. 

Page 123

Agenda Item 10



In six cases retrospective planning applications have been invited and have 
either been determined or are currently under consideration.

Untidy land cases vary in severity and their respective impact on amenity. 
Over the period, seven formally recorded cases have been investigated and 
six concluded.

The Authority issued three Section 215 Notices during the period. 

A long standing highly problematic case involving a derelict shop in Ainslie 
Street has now been concluded.  Works were carried out by the owners at 
their own expense to drastically improve the appearance of this long 
unoccupied building.  Public money spent on scaffolding is in the process of 
being recovered.  It is hoped that further engagement will result in a scheme 
to bring the property back into meaningful and sustainable use.

In a further long standing case, notice was served on the owner of an 
unoccupied residential property.  There has been a Public Protection Unit 
dimension, interest from local Members and the MP.  The Officer has 
addressed the Residents’ Association as the issue progressed.  Works have 
now been carried out by the owner to improve the external appearance of the 
house and clear the gardens.  Negotiations have ensured that no public 
money was spent on the house.  The Authority is now satisfied that the 
property is no longer having a detrimental effect on the amenity of the area.  
There remains conflict but balanced and even handed engagement has led to 
managed expectation from all parties involved.  This case exemplified the 
need for careful management of individuals and their Community.

A breach of condition notice involving a balcony served at the turn of the year 
in Dalton was complied with in January.  At the heart of this situation was a 
dispute between neighbours.  Following necessary works there have been no 
further calls for service.  The Elected Member involved in the case was 
satisfied with the outcome.

An Enforcement Notice has been served on the owner of a residential 
property in Askam in Furness.  This relates to an unsuccessful planning 
application for a parking area on open land adjacent to the dwelling house.  
The decision of the LPA was appealed but upheld.  The breach has continued 
and residents in the area continue to object.  Lengthy efforts to negotiate a 
voluntary cessation have not succeeded.  The individual concerned is now 
appealing the Enforcement Notice.  We await the Inspectorate’s response.  

The Committee was requested to authorise further action against a house 
builder in March relating to a safety critical condition within the development.  
Progress on this matter has been slow and has been linked to a number of 
other outstanding breaches.  Negotiations by senior Officers underpinned by 
legal support continue.  This case has highlighted the need for increased pro 
active monitoring of this and other developers in the town.  Systems have 
been reviewed and adapted to better prevent this type of occurrence.

Page 124

Agenda Item 10



During the summer an Officer attended a routine report of unauthorised 
development within a conservation area on Walney Island.  The owners of the 
property concerned presented with a range of complex vulnerabilities and 
needs.  Age and social isolation were important factors.  The occupant was 
fearful and reluctant to engage with the Department.  Much sensitive work 
was required to build understanding and grow trust.  It had transpired that a 
significant amount of valuable Burlington slate had been removed from the 
roof of a derelict outbuilding within the curtilage. 

The owner had paid a substantial sum for this to be done, but upon 
investigation it transpires that the work was not necessary and had been 
encouraged as part of a deception.  It was clear to the Officer that the owner 
had been exploited.  The Officer engaged with other agencies including 
Trading Standards and the Police.  With the objective of raising awareness 
and preventing further instances enquiries were commenced.  Unfortunately 
the owners felt so embarrassed at having fallen victim that they were reluctant 
to pursue the trader to a legal conclusion.  Nevertheless intelligence was 
provided, the Community was alerted and reassurance provided.

The Council continued with their investigation and structural harm was 
remedied, the owner being provided with assistance to procure reputable 
Contractors.  His faith in society was in part restored.  The original informant 
was pleased with the ultimate outcome but was more assured that the call 
had potentially protected other vulnerable members of his Community.  This 
case demonstrates that Council Officers discharging statutory services act as 
a further layer of protection to Citizens.    

A previously reported case involving untidy land and dwelling on Walney 
culminated in the property being cleared under Public Health legislation.  The 
property is owned by an elderly gentleman with much vulnerability.  Officers 
continue to adopt a multi-agency approach to issues relating to this member 
of our Community. 

A joint operation involving Cumbria County Council and the Borough got 
underway recently to tackle unauthorised advertising trailers along the A590 
Park Road corridor.  In an initial assessment it would appear we have 
achieved a high level of compliance and most have been removed.  We now 
have an agreed protocol to deal robustly with those that remain.  Legal action 
is not ruled out at this time either by the County under their highway powers or 
the Borough under the Planning Act and Advertisement Regulations.  There is 
now a determination by all stakeholders to prevent the situation developing 
again. 
       
(i) Legal Implications

The recommendation has no legal implications.

(ii) Risk Assessment

The recommendation has no significant implications.

Page 125

Agenda Item 10



(iii) Financial Implications

The recommendation has no financial implications.

(iv) Health and Safety Implications

The recommendation has no significant implications.

(v) Equality and Diversity

The recommendation has little impact on users with disabilities and Furness 
Equality and Diversity Partnership have been consulted.

(vi) Health and Well-being Implications

The recommendation has no adverse effect on the Health and Wellbeing of 
users of this service.

Background Papers

Nil

Authors

G Robson
J Hipkiss

Page 126

Agenda Item 10


	Agenda
	6 Confirmation of Minutes
	7 Delegated Approvals - For Information (Booklet attached)
	8 Planning Applications (Booklet attached).
	2019/0628 9 Bourne Gardens 
	Consultation responses
	Officers Report 
	recommendation

	2019/0567 Lisdoonie Hotel 
	Consultation responses
	Officers Report 
	Recommendation

	2019/0124 128 Buccleuch Street 
	Consultation responses
	Officers Report 
	Recommendation

	Policy Appendix

	9 Uploading of Local Validation Criteria
	Appendix 1 - Validation Checklist

	10 Enforcement Update Report

